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Chairman’s statement
EERBREFE

In 2022, troubled by the outbreak of the Russo-Ukrainian war,
global inflation, supply chain disruptions, and high commodity prices
as well as transportation costs, the macroeconomic environment
was complex. As for China, at the impact of various factors
including anti-COVID measures and commodity prices lingering
at high levels, her overall economic growth slowed down with
gross domestic product growth at 3.0% for the year. Despite these
unfavourable conditions, Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
— by formulating effective business strategies, firmly upholding
its corporate values and keeping up market cultivation efforts —

continued to take its businesses forward.

On the biochemical business front, with industrialisation of the
livestock industry picking up speed, veterinary drug administration
strengthening and the impacts of the African swine fever and
COVID-19 pandemic prevailing, the industry also tightened its
requirements for veterinary drug products. In turn the farming
industry was adversely impacted. Facing harsh challenges at home
and aboard, the Group actively responded with a series of measures
including extending the reach of its sales channels from feed mills
all the way down to farms, broadening its product ranges, building an
excellent sales and technical expertise team, plus continuing to lower
cost and improve operational efficiency. Hence, although operating in
a lacklustre market, the business remained in good condition and was

moving in strides towards realising the Group’s strategic goals.

During the year, the Group continued to implement “Six Sigma”
in managing production, pushed forward with optimising workflow,
and enhanced efficiency and product quality. At the same time,
always with corporate social responsibility at heart, we rolled out a
number of charitable social projects and also offered assistance to
the community amid the COVID-19 pandemic, so that we could
tide over the crisis together. In the aspect of human resources, the
Group recruited research and development and sales talent, kept
improving its manpower structure and overall staff quality, as well as
bolstered the relevant skills of managers and personnel with promising
potential by providing them training. The purpose of these actions is
to build up human capital reserve for the Group to achieve sustainable

development.
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Regarding our industrial business, 2022 was a difficult year for
China’s engineering machinery sector, and naturally also for this
business segment. The macro economy faced downward pressure, and
authorities imposed strict COVID-19 related measures. These factors
restrained business activities, thereby impacting the development of
China’s engineering machinery sector in recent years. With domestic
brands boasting price competitiveness, the market shares of foreign
brands shrank further, especially for small and medium size machinery.
As for China’s automobile and motorcycle industries, output of the
former stayed flat in 2022 compared with 2021, whereas that of the
latter actually dropped. To gear up for the future, Zhanjiang Deni
Vehicles Parts Co., Ltd. will continue to improve its competitive
strengths, optimise its customer base, grasp opportunities in the new

energy vehicle market, and enhance production efficiency.

Looking ahead, with China relaxing COVID-19 restrictions in early
2023, we, at the Group, will seize the opportunity of the impending
market recovery. We will continue to uphold the principle of
“benefiting the countries in which we operate, benefiting the people
whose community we share and benefiting the enterprises for which
we are responsible”. And we will strictly abide by environmental
laws and regulations, actively tackle uncertainties in the operating
environment and strive to meet the requirements of high-quality
development, so as to realise our business development aspirations in

2023.

Last but not least, I would like to thank all employees for their hard
work and contribution in 2022 and also shareholders for their trust

and support.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 February 2023
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Financial Highlights
MM E
(Unit: US$’000) (Hpr : For T L) 2022 2021
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FHEHEmMKHEREH
Revenue A 159,239 142,407
Gross Profit EEV| 39,189 34,760
(Loss)/Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the A 4y ) e o RE A (i ) /85 R
Company (6,677) 19,564
Excluding gain on factory relocation i P A BB R e 2 WA (6,677) 8,532
Gain on factory relocation W 7 W 28 W 2% - 11,032
Basic and Diluted (Loss)/Earnings Per Share BT B e A K 8 V(s 1) /% A
(US cents)! (Al (2.64) 7.72
Excluding gain on factory relocation R E B (2.64) 337
Gain on factory relocation 7 78 W % - 4.35
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FHEMBE RN ELEE
Property, Plant & Equipment Yk~ MG Bt 93,847 92,586
Total Assets K 350,585 365,216
Total Bank Borrowings B ERAT A 3K 49,102 42,612
Issued Capital O BT AR 25,333 25,333
Shareholders” Equity JBE WA R £ 230,850 253,059
Total Equity BE 25 40 %0 255,752 283,523
Revenue US$’000 Gross Profit US$’000
WA ETFT ER ExTFT
200,000 - 40,000 - 39,189
34,760
159,239
150,000 - 142,407 30,000 -
100,000 - 20,000
50,000 - 10,000
0 0
2021 2022 2021 2022
(Loss)/Profit  US$’000 Basic and US cents
Attributable ZETF T Diluted 1|l
to Shareholders 10,000 - (Loss)/Earnings 4 -
of the Company 2 8,532 Per Share 2 337
AARRR 5000 A BREXR 5
PEML (&58), SaR . BE(BR) R 2 )
0 0
(5,000) + l 2 r l
(6,677) (2.64)
(10,000) L (4) -
2021 2022 2021 2022

Remarks i k:

1

Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and
convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

A O V) B R A A AR W > B AAE L AT U A e T A B B S M 2 A 3 Mt 5 o

(Loss)/Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company and basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share exclude gain on factory
relocation.

590 3 8 WA A A A ) B SRR AN O 4RL) 36 0 0 91 M B A R B Ol 4RL) A
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

The Group has two lines of business: biochemical business
and industrial business. The biochemical business focuses on
chlortetracycline (“CTC”) and other related products, and is carried
on by Group subsidiaries. This business segment accounts for all of
the Group’s consolidated revenue. The industrial business comprises
the Group’s interests in its joint venture ECI Metro Investment Co.,
Ltd. (together with its subsidiaries, “ECI Metro”) and its associate
Zhanjiang Deni Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd. (together with its subsidiaries,
“Zhanjiang Deni”). The results of the Group’s industrial business are
incorporated in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

as share of profits and losses of joint venture and associate.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue increased
11.8% to US$159.2 million (2021: US$142.4 million). Overall gross
profit margin was at 24.6% (2021: 24.4%).

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company was US$6.7 million
(2021: profit of US$19.6 million). Excluding the one-off, net gain on
factory relocation of US$11 million in 2021, the Group receded from
a profit of US$8.5 million in 2021 to a loss of US$6.7 million in 2022.

The main contributing factor was the share of loss from ECI Metro.

Basic and diluted loss per share were both 2.6 US cents (2021:
profit of 7.7 US cents). Excluding the one-off, net gain on factory
relocation, basic and diluted loss per share were both 2.6 US cents
(2021: profit of 3.4 US cents). The board of directors of the Company
resolved not to declare a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Biochemical

We generate a sizable portion of our revenue from the manufacture
and sale of CTC products (CTC Premix and CTC HCL). CTC
products are antibiotics used to prevent or cure animal diseases. In
the past few years, we have been strategically broadening our product
portfolio to cover other related veterinary products. Of these new
offerings, some we manufacture and sale, and some we source and
trade. The Group’s major customers include farms, pharmaceutical

companies, trading companies and feed mills.

In 2022, the Group’s revenue from the biochemical business increased
11.8% to US$159.2 million (2021: US$142.4 million). Revenue
contribution from China, the Americas, Asia Pacific (excluding
China), and elsewhere was 52.3%, 18.3%, 15.3% and 14.1%,

respectively.

For the year under review, despite multiple challenges at home and
aboard, we recorded solid revenue growth, mainly due to an increase
in domestic sales. In China, our CTC business remained stable.
During the year, in response to the ban on the use of antibiotics as
feed additives, the Group successfully shifted its key CTC customers
from feed mills to farms. Furthermore, we actively explored sales of
other veterinary products. These products generated new business for

the Group and were the key revenue growth driver in China.

For our overseas markets, the COVID-19 pandemic caused logistic
issues and product delivery delays. Nonetheless, the marketing efforts
we put in successfully resulted in a slight increase in overall overseas

revenue.

In 2022, average selling price of CTC premix, our main revenue
contributor, was similar to that in 2021. Raw materials and energy
were also under control during the year. Overall, gross profit margin
was at 24.6% in 2022 (24.4% in 2021).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Industrial

The Group’s industrial business is conducted through ECI Metro and
Zhanjiang Deni.

ECI Metro is principally engaged in the sale, leasing and servicing
of Caterpillar machinery equipment in western China. In 2022,
the excavator market in China was impacted by sharp decline in
construction machinery demand and COVID-19 control measures.
According to the China Construction Machinery Association,
excavator sales across the entire market in 2022 was 45% lower than
2021. Our market share in the small and medium-sized construction
machinery segment was also continuously challenged by domestic
brands in China. For the year ended 31 December 2022, our share
of profits and losses of joint venture reduced from a profit of US$4
million in 2021 to a loss of US$9 million in 2022.

Zhanjiang Deni is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
automotive parts, which are mainly sold to automobile and motorcycle
manufacturers. According to the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, automobile sales in 2022 increased 2.1% year-on-year;
and according to China Chamber of Commerce for Motorcycle, China
motorcycle sales in 2022 was 16% lower than 2021. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, our share of profit of associate was US$2.1
million (2021: US$2.2 million).

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the pace of economic recovery and various animal
diseases are expected to bring uncertainties to our biochemical
business. For our industrial business, fixed-asset investment growth
in 2023 is expected to hover at a low level and competition is likely
to remain intense for the year. Overall, we remain cautious for our

performance in 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total assets of US$350.6
million, an decrease of 4.0% as compared to US$365.2 million as at
31 December 2021.

Net debt (31 December 2022: US$18.2 million, 31 December 2021:
US$11.5 million) to equity ratio (defined as total bank borrowings
minus cash divided by total equity) was 0.07 as at 31 December 2022.

All the borrowings of the Group are denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s fixed interest rate bank
borrowings amounted to US$26.8 million (31 December 2021:
US$20.9 million).

All domestic sales in mainland China are transacted in RMB and
export sales are transacted in foreign currencies. The Group monitors
exchange rate movements and determines appropriate hedging

activities when necessary.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$30.9 million as at 31
December 2022, a decrease of US$0.2 million compared to US$31.1
million as at 31 December 2021.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, out of the total borrowings of US$49.1
million (31 December 2021: US$42.6 million) obtained by the Group,
US$18.3 million (31 December 2021: US$18.9 million) was secured
and accounted for 37.3% (31 December 2021: 44.4%) of the total
borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
land lease prepayments with an aggregate net book value of US$13.8
million (31 December 2021: US$10.8 million) were pledged as

security.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no other
significant investments held nor material acquisitions or disposals

during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed around 1,000
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
market conditions while performance bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include, for example,

medical insurance and training.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

A H

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

HEEE

ALEER R AT A= R AENE
Keih ffi

BFANERRE BEAUREBRUEE

Wik A 47 0 T 49 B A o A 4 P A A AR N A A i L
HARE > PRAEATETE KBRS & o

BERMEHE

RERZZEFZHZE B AREEA A
WAL A91,0004 08 B o A4 B AR 552 0 H iR BT -
R R BUAT BT 5K F > BT L HEE > SR T
ABAL o FoAth 0 5 A8 A A5 o = e AR B S 3 -

—®--%%%

09



10

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

BER LA

Corporate Governance Report

TRERBRS

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to
maintaining strict corporate governance standards. The principles of
these standards are to uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
accountability and integrity in all aspects of business and to ensure
that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) throughout the year 2022.

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) comprises nine members,
including four executive directors, two non-executive directors

and three independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and the relationships among the Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”

in this annual report.

(b) Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul and Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi are
the Chief Executive Officers of the biochemical division and
the industrial division respectively. The roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officers are distinct and separate
with a clear division of responsibilities. The Chairman is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board while
the Chief Executive Officers are responsible for managing the

Group’s business.
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THE BOARD (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, directly and through its committees, leads
and provides direction for the management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation by
the management, reviews the operational and financial
performance, provides oversight to ensure that a sound system
of risk management and internal control is in place, and

performs corporate governance functions.

The non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) provide advisory as well as checks
and balances for effective and constructive contribution to
the Board to safeguard interests of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Company as a whole.

The management is responsible for execution of business

strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are

independent.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions, which is based on the required standard set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules — Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, as the
code of conduct for dealings in the Company’s securities by
its directors. All Directors responded to a specific enquiry
by the Company and confirmed that they complied with the
required standard set out in the Code of Conduct for Securities

Transactions during 2022.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

X E B ER

A H

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Exg (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

AERBE

ERT(ERLAERHLEBETHZRS) WEIL
TR PG > B3 ) S M B A B 4 AT SR
W~ A A B S AR B o A RS DU £
WA LG e L B A R A Py R B R A R
17 A IR AE o

A TER (BEEIIERTESR) HEFE
PO R - A A 5 A AR A R B
(TP IR ) B A 2 W) il R ) 25 40 1 A 2 e e
ek B ERK o

BB AT SR B R S B AR

BYFHITES

A2 V) W] B S R BUAT SRR b
R 583 1300 At G 3 T A Y 4E R THE R
PR o 3 R Ay P A S AT o Y i e S A
:t‘o

EENEHRS

AT ORGSR A AT R Y B > H TS ML BE
bR R 8z BB AT N R E R
38 S WA R A S B BT SRR L > A L
FHEAAFABHFOT /T - TAERFC
Do JE A 2 ] L 8 A ) O R R T AR
SN IR A2 G AT A S S0 9 BT R AL R R o

—®--%%%



12

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

Corporate Governance Report

TEEBRRSE

THE BOARD (continued)

)

(9)

Directors’ Training

During 2022, each of the Directors, being Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul, Mr. Thanakorn
Seriburi, Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont, Mr. Chawalit Na
Muangtoun, Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom,
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung,
participated in continuous professional development through
participation in trainings organised by the Company and other
professional organisations, and review of regulatory update

provided by the Company.

General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During 2022, the Company held one annual general meeting,
seven Board meetings, four Audit Committee meetings,
two Remuneration Committee meetings, one Nomination
Committee meeting and two Corporate Governance

Committee meetings.

The Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and
attention to perform their duties and responsibilities.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, Directors can
attend board meetings in person or by means of telephone,

electronic or other communication facilities.
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General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board () REAE -EEEREETZBTNEESS
Committee Meetings (continued) = (&)
The attendance of each Director at the meetings held in 2022 TEINBEBMEFN -FE___FHEEEN
is set out in the following table: W&
No. of meetings attended/held
L VAE LI
Annual Corporate
General Audit  Remuneration Nomination Governance
Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
ek #H HM 4 6 e
EESN | fEd | ZHA LHE EHE LHE
Chairman and Non-executive Director FHFRRFAGTEF
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont EEIN 11 67 - - 11 -
Executive Directors HirE#
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul BB 0t m - - - -
M. Thanakorn Seriburi BARKE 11 n - 2 - -
Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont AN /1 m - - - My
Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun e 11 M - - - )i
Non-executive Director FhEE
Mr. Yoichi [kezoe iR~ Kk 111 N - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors Vg (L]
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom 2 i m 44 0N 11 -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo MR 11 " 44 0 11 -
Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung Al 11 n 4/4 0 - 0
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THE BOARD (continued)

(h)

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in

the annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which should give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
statement of the auditor of the Company about the Director’s
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in

this annual report.

The Board considers that, in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are adopted consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable, prudent and in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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U]

Dividend Policy

The Dividend Policy adopted by the Company is set out below:

The Dividend Policy sets out the approach of the

Company on the declaration and payment of dividends
to the Shareholders.

The Board is responsible for considering and, if
appropriate, declaring any interim dividend or
recommending any final dividend to the Shareholders
for approval every year. Any approved dividends must

not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

The declaration or recommendation of any dividend
will take into consideration the Company’s results of
operations and financial conditions, business strategy
and future development and any other factors that
the Board may deem relevant. No dividend shall be
declared or paid except out of the Company’s profits
and reserves lawfully available for distribution. The
payment of dividend is also subject to applicable laws
and regulations, including any applicable restrictions

under the Company’s bye-laws.

Future declarations or recommendations of dividends
may or may not reflect the Company’s historical
declarations or recommendations of dividends and
will be at the absolute discretion of the Board. In
general, whilst the Company is in a growth stage,
the Board does not expect, in the absence of special

circumstances, to declare or recommend any dividend.

This Dividend Policy is subject to review by the Board
and may be amended by the Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)

1)

Corporate Culture and Strategy ()

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and/
or sale of chlortetracycline and other related products.
Additionally, the Group is also involved, through its joint
venture and associated company, in the trading of machinery
and the manufacture and sale of automotive parts. We conduct

our business by upholding the Group’s six core values:

1. Three Benefits Principle: The Group has always
operated our business by adhering to the ‘Three
Benefits Principle’. This states that our business should
first benefit the countries where we operate; then the
communities we engage with and lastly the company
and employees. Since the founding days, this principle
has guided our growth and ensured that our operations

benefit the society as a whole.

2. Speed with Quality: Modern businesses must be
fast-moving, without compromising quality. They must
be able to adapt to new circumstances, adopt the latest
technologies, respond to both consumers’ changing
tastes and preferences, and evolving regulations.
As a result, the Group places great importance on
the efficiency and effectiveness of our business and

employees.

3. Simplification: The Group is committed to applying
technology and innovation that simplifies its systems
and operations while improving efficiency and
effectiveness across the entire Group. Simplification is
one of the key practices that has enhanced the Group’s

success.

4. Accept Changes: Global businesses face daily changing
circumstances — from political, socio-economic
and environmental issues to consumers’ needs and
technological development. Our key strategy is to
embrace changes. We encourage our employees to stay
informed of new opportunities so that we could deliver
more to our customers. This also helps us to manage the

evolving circumstances across all of our markets.
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Corporate Culture and Strategy (continued)

5. Innovation: Innovation drives every aspect of our
business from processes to products. Businesses must
constantly innovate to keep pace with a rapidly
changing world. We actively encourage our employees
to be innovative. Our goal is to foster innovation across
our business to deliver the best products and services to

our customers.

6. Integrity: Since the very first day of the Group, we have
operated our business with integrity and transparency
in every transaction — big or small. We firmly believe
that any business focusing solely on self-enrichment
and disregarding integrity will ultimately lose trust of

its stakeholders and ability to operate in the long run.

We operate our business ethically, manage our organisation
with transparency and accountability, and aim to create value
for all stakeholder groups. The Group not only aims to achieve
business growth but also to operate as a “good corporate
citizen” by conducting business responsibly and participating
in economic, social, and environmental development to create
benefits for society. This includes benefits for the country of
investment and citizens of that country, leading to sustainable
mutual growth of the Group and society. We believe that
conducting business in line with corporate governance
principles is the key foundation for ethical business practices,
leading to systematic and efficient management, as well
as enabling the Group to adapt to change and increase its
competitiveness. This results in good long-term performance
while creating value to society, the environment, and other
stakeholders, culminating in the business’ sustainable growth.
We, therefore, established the Anti-corruption Policy and
the Whistleblowing Policy to guide employees on working in
accordance with corporate governance principles and ethical

standards.

Taking into account the corporate culture in a range of
contexts, the Board considers that the culture and the purpose,

value and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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BOARD DELEGATION

The Board has delegated authority to the following four committees
which operate under defined terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

In order to comply with the Corporate Governance Code, the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee were revised and adopted
on 23 February 2023 to include the review and approval of matters

relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The attendance of each committee member at the committee

meetings held in 2022 is set out in this annual report.
(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman),
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom and Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with the
primary responsibility to provide independent oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including support from the Internal Audit
Department, external auditor and management, to perform
its duties in reviewing the Group’s financial results, material

financial, operational and compliance controls.
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Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year.
The following is a summary of the work done by the Audit
Committee in 2022:

o reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2021 and recommended the Board to approve
the 2021 annual results and the related financial
information set out in the results announcement and the

annual report;

o reviewed the report of the external auditor to the Audit

Committee for the year ended 31 December 2021;

° approved the 2022 audit fee;

o reviewed the risk management update of the Group;

o reviewed the internal audit reports of the Group;

° reviewed the preliminary results for the three months

ended 31 March 2022 and recommended the Board
to approve the publication of the profit warning

announcement;

o reviewed the preliminary results for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and recommended the Board
to approve the publication of the profit warning

announcement;

. reviewed the interim results for the six month ended
30 June 2022 and recommended the Board to approve
the 2022 interim results and the related financial
information set out in the results announcement and

the interim report;

o reviewed the report of the external auditor to the Audit

Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2022;

° reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken

by the external auditor;
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U]

Audit Committee (continued)

o reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems; and

° reviewed the Whistleblowing Policy and recommended

the Board to approve and adopt such policy.

Subsequent to the 2022 year end, the Audit Committee
reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2022 and recommended the Board to approve the 2022 annual
results and the related financial information set out in the

results announcement and this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and
the approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor. To ensure the external auditor’s
independence, the Audit Committee reviewed the audit and

non-audit services undertaken by the external auditor in 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration

paid by the Group to the external auditor is set out below:
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(US$’000)

Category of Services iR 55 2 031 (#7LFL)
Audit services IR 187
Review engagements and agreed-upon procedures PR PTG R 53
240

Other services LAt iR 2
Total falel 242
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(i)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman),
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom and Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung,
and an executive Director, Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration policy and structure for the directors
as well as to consider and recommend to the Board the

remuneration packages of the individual director.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the
success of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the
Company to the Shareholders. The objective of the Company’s
Remuneration Policy (the “Remuneration Policy”) is to
maintain fair and competitive packages based on business

requirements and industry practices.

During 2022, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to consider and recommend to the Board the remuneration
packages of the individual director and the remuneration
proposal for 2023.

Details of the remuneration of each Director are set out in

note 9 to the financial statements in this annual report.
Remuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy is established and implemented to
support the strategies and long-term vision of the Group as
well as provide adequate incentive for Directors and employees
to pursue long-term growth and success of the Group. The
remuneration for the Directors and senior management
shall be determined and recommended by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board after giving due consideration of all
relevant factors including individual performance, duty and
responsibility, the Group’s performance, market conditions as
well as the compensation level for comparable positions among
other companies with similar businesses. The Remuneration

Policy shall be reviewed by the Board from time to time.
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(iif)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of a non-executive Director,
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) and two independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom and
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to formulate and implement the
Company’s Nomination Policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
and Board Diversity Policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”),
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of
any individual nominated for directorship and assess the

independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a successive term of three years. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation, but may offer themselves for
re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws. According to the Company’s bye-laws,
at each annual general meeting of the Company, no less than
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every

three years.

During 2022, the Nomination Committee held a meeting and
reviewed the diversity, structure, size and composition of the
Board, the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors and recommended to the Board to propose the
re-election of the retiring directors to the Shareholders at the

annual general meeting in 2022.

Subsequent to the 2022 year end, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the diversity, structure, size and composition of the
Board, the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors and recommended to the Board to propose the
re-election of the retiring Directors to the Shareholders at the

annual general meeting in 2023.
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Nomination Committee (continued)
Board Independence

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. Such
mechanisms will be reviewed annually by the Board. In 2022,
the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the following mechanisms and considered such mechanisms

remained effective and were properly implemented:

1. All our Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent of and not related to each other and any
members of the senior management. Also, Independent
Non-executive Directors forms a majority in our Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration

Committee.

2. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officers are separate to ensure a balance of power and

authority.

3. Independent Non-executive Directors’ independence is

assessed annually.

4. The Chairman of the Board will meet with the
Independent Non-executive Directors at least annually

without the presence of the Executive Directors.

5. No equity-based remuneration with performance-
related elements will be granted to Independent

Non-executive Directors.

6. The Board and Board Committees members are
authorised to engage external advisors or consultants to
advise them on such issues as they consider necessary at

the Company’s expenses.
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LEERRE

BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy to set out
the approach to achieve diversity in the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse board
to strengthen its effectiveness and governance. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity considerations,
which include but are not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee,
in carrying out its duties, will also take into account the
Company’s corporate strategy and organisational needs.
Review on the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy will be conducted annually by the Nomination

Committee and the Board.

Subsequent to the 2022 year end, the Board reviewed the
diversity, structure, size and composition of the Board as well
as the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy for the year 2022. The Board considered that the Board

Diversity Policy remains effective.

The Board is committed to achieving gender diversity on
the Board level by having a non-single gender Board and by
providing the Company with a good balance and diversity
of skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
its business. Accordingly, the Board will appoint at least
one female Director by 31 December 2024. The Board will
continue to review its composition from time to time taking

into consideration specific needs for the Group’s business.
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TEERRE

BOARD DELEGATION (continued) EEESRE(E)
(iii) Nomination Committee (continued) (i) RBEZEEEF(H)
Board Diversity Policy (continued) EEFEAEZTIEHE (B
Details of the diversity, structure, size and composition of the FERETLZub - 220 - NSO A B A FE T R
Board are set out below: FIWF
Board Diversity Profile
wHFZ L
Gender Male
M T
Designation Executive Director Non-executive Director Independent Non-executive Director
WAt AT P T BorIE AT R
Age Group ;
oo 50-59 60-69 270
Expertise and Experience Management ﬁ\fﬂc;lil:at:;ge Legal
SR AN £ g Py R
Number of Directors
- 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
The Board is also committed to maintaining gender diversity 3 N BN N AE B T R A 22 o0
and equality on the workforce level. The Group is principally AL AP 45 o A SR 1 A B AR KB
engaged in the manufacture and/or sale of chlortetracycline SRR B ICAHBA A o BEIRMAT MY > K
and other related products. Due to the nature of the industry, M 70% M8 T RSB - BBUERE T)E
over 70% of our workforce are male. To encourage more T AR ) 22 oAk AR T R BN AN
gender diversity in the workforce level, the Company plans to etk B TR BIE HITE 27% REF] 30% °
increase the existing percentage of female workforce from 27%
to 30% in five years.
The total workforce by gender of the Company was disclosed AT R # 0B THRBCAE R g
in the 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) R e RERREPE -
report.
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LEERRE

BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy adopted by the Company is set out

below:

1 Purpose

1.1

1.2

The Nomination Committee of the Company
has the primary responsibility of identifying
and nominating suitably qualified candidates to
become Directors (to fill casual vacancies and as

new Board members).

Nomination Policy sets out the approach with
respect to the selection and nomination of
candidates for directorship of the Company so
as to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business for the Board to consider
and, if appropriate, appoint as additional
Directors or as Directors to fill casual vacancies,
as the case may be, or make recommendations
to the Shareholders for election as Directors at

general meetings.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

2 Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary

Requirements

2.1

2.2

The Nomination Committee may select
suitably qualified candidates to nominate to the
Board from such resources as the Nomination
Committee considers appropriate, including
through referrals by members of the Board,
by the management of the Company and
by external professional agencies and other

resources.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the
factors listed below, together with any other
factors as the Nomination Committee may
consider appropriate, in assessing the suitability

of any candidate:

character, reputation and integrity;

- qualifications, accomplishments and

experience;

- capacity to devote sufficient time to
discharge duties amidst other significant

commitments;

- effect on the diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background,
professional and industry experience,

skills and expertise knowledge;

- (where the proposed candidate is being
considered as candidate for an Independent
Non-executive Director position) ability to
fulfil the independence requirements under
the Listing Rules; and

- potential contributions to the Board and

any other relevant factors.
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TEEBRRSE

BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

2 Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary

Requirements (continued)

2.2

2.3

(continued)

The list of factors stated above is for reference
only and not intended to be exhaustive or
definitive. The Nomination Committee shall
assess all relevant factors with a view to
achieve the Company’s corporate strategy and
organisational needs and has the discretion to

nominate any person as it considers appropriate.

The candidates shall timely provide such
information and documents relating to their
nomination as the Nomination Committee
or the Board may request, including but not
limited to any such information as is required
for disclosure under the Listing Rules and their
written consent to be elected as Directors and to

the public disclosure of their information.

3 Nomination Rules and Procedures

3.1

3.2

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee and in advance of the meeting
invite nomination of candidates from members
of the Board, if any, for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee may put forward other candidates
irrespective of whether such candidates have

been nominated by members of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt
of all necessary information relating to the
candidates, evaluate each of such candidates
at the meeting based on the criteria set out in
Section 2 above to determine whether to make

a nomination to the Board.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Nomination Rules and Procedures (continued)

33 The number of candidates nominated by the
Nomination Committee may exceed the number
of casual vacancies or vacancies for Director’s
appointment by the Board or at the general

meeting.

3.4 The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to the appointment of
candidates as Directors and its recommendation
of candidates to stand for election at any

general meeting.

3.5 Any proposed candidate is entitled to withdraw
his/her candidature at any time before the
meeting of the Board at which his appointment
is to be considered or the general meeting at
which he/she is to stand for election by serving

a notice in writing to the Company.
Confidentiality

Unless required by law or any regulatory authority,
under no circumstances may a member of the
Nomination Committee disclose any information to the
public with regard to any nomination or candidature
whilst such information has not been disclosed by the

Company to the public.

Review

The Nomination Committee will review this
Nomination Policy from time to time, as appropriate,
and discuss any revisions that may be considered
appropriate, including to ensure that it remains
relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both
current regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practice, and recommend them to the
Board for approval.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)
6 Disclosure of Policy

The Nomination Policy may be disclosed in such manner
as the Board considers appropriate and in compliance with
any applicable regulatory requirements or guidelines.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of an
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Edward Ko Ming
Tung (Chairman) and two executive Directors, Mr. Nopadol
Chiaravanont and Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun.

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by
the Board with the primary responsibilities to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
Company’s compliance with the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions, and its compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code.

During 2022, the Corporate Governance Committee held
two meetings to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 December
2021 and for the six months ended 30 June 2022, respectively.
The Corporate Governance Committee also reviewed the major
ESG initiatives taken in 2021, the revised 2030 ESG targets and
the 2021 ESG report.

Subsequent to the 2022 year end, the Corporate Governance
Committee reviewed the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 December
2022. The Corporate Governance Committee also reviewed the
major ESG initiatives taken in 2022, the progress on the 2030
ESG targets and the 2022 ESG report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Our Approach

The Group has established and adopted a Risk Management Policy
which is designed to manage the risk of failure associated with
the Group while achieving its business objectives and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss. A risk appetite statement has been established to define
the extent of risks that the Group is willing to take in pursuit of its

strategies and business objectives.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different levels of
management within the Group. The Board acknowledges that it is
responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board also (i) oversees the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
and (ii) evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s business objectives. The
Board delegates the responsibility of reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems to the
Audit Committee, which monitors the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems through the Internal Audit Department. The
Internal Audit Department carries out independent review of key
business processes and controls. Key findings and recommendations
for improvement are regularly reported to the Audit Committee.
The external auditor also reports any control issues which have
been identified in the course of audit or review work to the Audit
Committee. Management is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring risk management and internal control systems,
whereas risk owners appointed by the management are responsible
for identifying, analysing and prioritising risk issues for further
consideration by management, and ensuring that the risk monitoring
and control system are working effectively and risk mitigation actions

are implemented timely within business units.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Effectiveness Review

In 2022, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Board considers that the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are effective

and adequate.

The Board also considers that the Group has adequate resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
for accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions as
well as those relating to our environmental, social and governance

performance and reporting.
Continuous Improvement

We are committed to improving our risk management and internal
control framework and will continue to enhance the integration of

risk management and internal control into our business process.

For handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information in accordance with legal requirements and, where
required, communicate with the Group’s stakeholders in a timely

manner.
Whistleblowing Policy

We are committed to high probity standards and ethical business
practices and believe that a whistleblowing system can help to detect
and deter misconduct or malpractice in the Group. The Company
has formulated the Whistleblowing Policy in accordance with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Whistleblowing Policy
was approved and adopted by the Board, with the authority and
responsibility being delegated to the Audit Committee. Detail of the
Whistleblowing Policy is available on the website of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Anti-corruption Policy

We are committed to doing business with integrity. The Company
has formulated the Anti-corruption Policy in accordance with the
requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Anti-corruption Policy
was approved and adopted by the Board, with the authority and
responsibility being delegated to the Audit Committee. Detail of the

Anti-corruption Policy is available on the website of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may from time to
time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in default, may be

convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can submit a written requisition to the

Board for convening a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of

the Company.

If the Board fails to convene a meeting within twenty-one days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from

the date of the written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner as that in which meetings are to be convened by
the Board. At least fourteen clear days’ notice in writing (and not less

than ten business days) shall be given to all members of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

To Make Enquiry to the Board

The Shareholders can make enquiry to the Board by writing to the

Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less
than one hundred members, can submit a written requisition to the

Board for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution or state the business to be dealt with at that

meeting, and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company no less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or no less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution

and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.
To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for

election as a director of the Company at a general meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his/her willingness
to be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his/her personal data,
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting at
which the candidate is proposed for election, and ending no later than

seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Detail of the Procedures for a Shareholder to Propose a Person for

Election as a Director is available on the Company’s website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established a number of channels for maintaining

an on-going dialogue with its Shareholders and in the following ways:

(i) Convening Shareholders’ meetings where Shareholders could
communicate directly with the Board;

(ii)  Information of the Company would be communicated to

Shareholders in a timely manner through the publication of

the Company’s corporate communications including interim

and annual reports and circulars; and

(iii)  All of the Company’s corporate communications are available

on the Company’s website which is updated regularly.

The Board has established a Shareholders Communication Policy
setting out the principles in relation to communication with the
Shareholders, with the objective of maintaining full, open and
timely communication with the Shareholders. Review on the
implementation and effectiveness of the Shareholder Communication

Policy will be conducted annually by the Board.

In 2022, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholder Communication Policy. Having considered the
multiple communication channels in place for Shareholders to
communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company,
the Board was satisfied that the Shareholder Communication Policy

has been properly implemented during 2022 and was effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In 2022, the Company did not make any changes to its constitutional

documents.

In order to bring the Company’s existing bye-laws in line with the
Core Shareholder Protection Standards set out in Appendix 3 to
the Listing Rules which have become effective from 1 January 2022,
the Board proposed to amend the Company’s bye-laws accordingly,
together with other minor housekeeping amendments. The above
proposals will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders by way
of a special resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and shall take effect upon the close of the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company if so approved.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 58, has been the Chairman and
a Non-executive Director of the Company and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee since September 2014. Mr. Chearavanont is
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chearavanont
has extensive multinational investment and management experience
in various industries. Mr. Chearavanont is the chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited and holds directorships in the
following listed companies: a director and the chairman of CP ALL
Public Company Limited and Charoen Pokphand Foods Public
Company Limited (companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand); a non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Ltd. (a company listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange); an executive director and the chairman of C.P. Lotus
Corporation (which was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until its withdrawal from listing in
October 2019); and an executive director and the chairman of C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (which was listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until its withdrawal from
listing in January 2022). Mr. Chearavanont was previously a director
of True Corporation Public Company Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange of Thailand). Mr. Chearavanont obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business and Public

Administration of New York University, USA.

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul, aged 80, has been the Chief Executive
Officer (Biochemical Division) and an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2014. He is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company and a senior vice chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited. Mr. Phityaisarakul has extensive

management experience in a wide range of industries.
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Mr.
Company since February 1988 and an Executive Director, Chief

Thanakorn Seriburi, aged 77, has been a Director of the

Executive Officer (Industrial Division) and a member of the
Remuneration Committee since September 2014. He is a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company and a senior vice chairman of
Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited. Mr. Seriburi has been
working on investment projects for Charoen Pokphand Group in the
PRC since 1979 and has extensive experience in industrial operations

in Asia and elsewhere.

As disclosed in detail previously (including in the listing document
published by the Company on 17 June 2015 in connection with the
listing of its entire issued share capital on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Mr. Phityaisarakul and
Mr. Seriburi, then executive directors of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd.
(“CPP”), were censured in 1999 by the Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for acting in breach of their
undertakings (i) to comply to the best of their ability with the Listing
Rules (as they stood at that time) and to use their best endeavours
to procure that CPP would so comply; and (ii) to procure that CPP
would comply with the relevant provisions in the listing agreement
between CPP and the Stock Exchange which subsisted at that time
in respect of certain connected transactions of CPP. For details of the
censure and the breaches, please refer to the news release published by
the Stock Exchange on 3 May 1999 and the listing document referred

to above.

Mzr. Nopadol Chiaravanont, aged 61, has been a Director of the
Company since July 2014, an Executive Director of the Company
since September 2014 and a member of the Corporate Governance
Committee since December 2017. He is a director of a subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Chiaravanont is also an assistant to the chairman
of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited, vice chairman of
the automotive and industrial business group (China) of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited and a director of CPPC Public
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun, aged 56, has been an Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Corporate Governance
Committee since February 2019. He is currently a senior executive
of the Group primarily responsible for the management of the
Group’s biochemical business in China. Mr. Na Muangtoun also
holds directorships in several companies within the Group. Mr. Na
Muangtoun has been working for the Group since 1992. Mr. Na
Muangtoun received a Bachelor degree in Accounting from Payap
University in Thailand in 1989.
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Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, aged 63, has been a Non-executive Director of
the Company since October 2015. Mr. Ikezoe is also a non-executive
director of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (which was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until its
withdrawal from listing in January 2022). Mr. lkezoe is currently
Deputy CEO for East Asia Bloc, Senior Officer of Asia and Oceania
Bloc, CP and CITIC (Overseas Operation) of ITOCHU Corporation
(a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange) and Chairman of
ITOCHU Hong Kong Ltd., ITOCHU Shanghai Ltd. and ITOCHU
(China) Holding Co., Ltd. Mr. Ikezoe has been working for ITOCHU
Corporation (formerly known as C.ITOH & Co., Ltd.) since 1983.
He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from the Faculty of Foreign
Studies, Osaka University in Japan in 1983.

Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom, aged 69, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee since September 2014. Mr. Rounroengrom is also an
independent director and the chairman of Ekachai Medical Care
Public Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand). Mr. Rounroengrom had a long career with the Royal Thai
Navy and was the 48th Commander-in-Chief of the Royal Thai Navy
from October 2011 to September 2013 before he retired from the Thai
armed forces. He was the Supreme Commander Advisor from January
2014 to September 2014 and was a National Legislative Assembly
Member from August 2014 to May 2019. Mr. Rounroengrom obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree from Royal Thai Naval Academy,
Thailand, in February 1977.
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Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 62, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the
Nomination Committee since September 2014. Mr. Cheng has over
30 years of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory
services. Mr. Cheng is currently also an independent non-executive
director of the following companies listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: CSI Properties Limited,
CPMC Holdings Limited, Top Spring International Holdings
Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Miricor Enterprises
Holdings Limited, Kidsland International Holdings Limited and
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited. Mr. Cheng is also an
independent non-executive director of Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited). Mr. Cheng was previously an independent
non-executive director of DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings
Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Goldbond Group Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited until its listing was cancelled with effect from 2 August
2021), C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd., Chong Hing Bank Limited and HKC
(Holdings) Limited (companies listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until their withdrawal from
listing in January 2022, September 2021 and June 2021, respectively).
Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting from the University of Kent, the United Kingdom in
1983 and a Master of Science (Economics) degree, majoring in
Accounting and Finance from the London School of Economics and
Political Science, the United Kingdom in 1984. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member

of the Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.
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Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung, aged 62, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee since September
2014, and the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
since December 2017. Mr. Ko is the principal of Messrs. Edward Ko
& Company and has been practising as a solicitor in Hong Kong
for more than 30 years. Mr. Ko is currently also an independent
non-executive director of the following companies listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: Sinofert
Holdings Limited and EverChina Int’l Holdings Company Limited.
Mr. Ko was previously an independent non-executive director of
Zioncom Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), Wai Chun Group
Holdings Limited and Sterling Group Holdings Limited (companies
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited). Mr. Ko obtained an external Bachelor of Laws Degree from
the University of London in the United Kingdom in 1986 and is a
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is a cousin of Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont.
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul and Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi are brothers.
Save as disclosed above, there is no other material relationship among

members of the Board.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various businesses and functions of the Company are respectively
under the direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are

regarded as senior management of the Company.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and/or sale of
chlortetracycline (“CTC”) and other related products. Additionally,
the Group is also involved, through its joint venture and associated
company, in the trading of machinery and the manufacture and sale of

automotive parts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group is set out in the sections headed

» o«

“Chairman’s Statement”, “Financial Highlights” and “Management

Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, a discussion
on the environmental policies and performance, compliance with laws
and regulations and the key relationships with stakeholders are set out

below.

For further information about the environmental and social
performance of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the
2022 ESG report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Directors are not aware of
any important event affecting the Group since the end of the financial

year under review.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are discussed
below. Details of the Group’s financial risk management are set out in

note 33 to the financial statements in this annual report.

Reliance on Key Products

Sales of CTC Premix account for a substantial portion of the Group’s
revenue. Any factors adversely affecting the pricing of, demand for,
consumer preferences for, regulatory requirements of, or market
acceptance of CTC Premix, including any increase in competition,
change in government regulatory requirements, negative findings
or publicity on the effects of CTC Premix, could cause the Group’s
revenue to decline and the Group’s business and future operating

results to suffer.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Volatility of Commodity Prices

The principal raw materials used to manufacture CTC products are
corn starch, yeast, peanut meal and soybean meal. The availability
and prices of the necessary raw materials may be adversely affected
by factors beyond the Group’s control, such as weather conditions,

natural disasters or a sudden surge in demand.

If the supply of raw materials is disrupted to a material degree or if
there is a substantial increase in the prices of raw materials, and the
Group is not able to purchase the same raw materials of the same
quality from alternative suppliers at competitive prices or to transfer
such material price increase to customers, the Group’s financial
condition and operating results may be materially and adversely
affected. Management will set a safety stock level and continuously
collect and analyse the commodity prices information when

purchasing these raw materials.
Market Competition

The Group faces intense competition from other CTC producers.
New players may also enter the market, competing with the Group’s

existing clients and negatively impacting the Group’s market share.
Product Liability

If the Group’s products fail to perform as expected, or prove to
be defective or result in accidents, personal injuries, casualties or
financial losses to customers, the Group may be subject to liability
claims for damages. If products do not meet the specifications and
requirements requested by customers, or if any of the Group’s products
are defective, such defects or any complaints or negative publicity
resulting therefrom could result in decreased sales of the Group’s
products, and the Group may also be subject to product liability claims
and litigation. The Group’s internal quality control team oversees
quality assurance controls and systems throughout the production

process.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Licenses and Permits

In accordance with applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Group
is required to obtain and maintain various licences and permits in
order to commence and operate our business. In addition, in order to
export and sell CTC products overseas, the Group needs to obtain
various government approvals and comply with applicable standards
in relation to production processes, premises and CTC products in the

countries where the Group sell CTC products.

Although the Group currently has the necessary licences and permits,
the eligibility criteria for such licences and permits may change
from time to time and may become more stringent. In addition, new
requirements for the grant or renewal of such licences and permits
may come into effect in the future. The introduction of any such new
and/or more stringent laws or regulations may significantly escalate
the compliance and maintenance costs or may limit or even prohibit
the Group to continue its existing operations or expand its business.
Management continuously keeps abreast of regulatory changes in the

relevant laws and regulations on licenses and permits.
Disease Outbreak

Any animal disease outbreak, such as bird flu and African swine fever,
may cause widespread animal death, and hence would affect demand
for our products and results of the Group. Further, any human disease
outbreak, such as COVID-19, may also disrupt the Group’s business,
including delay in raw material supply, workforce availability due
to people movement restrictions and outbound logistical delays in
our delivery of products to customers. The Group will monitor the
situation and adopt appropriate measures to minimize the impact on

the Group’s business and operation.
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Report of the Directors
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
Environmental Compliance

Our CTC production is required to comply with applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations in the PRC which
govern the standards of air pollution, waste water discharge and
noise emissions. Local PRC government and authorities generally
have the authority delegated by relevant laws and regulations to
impose penalties on companies failing to comply with the relevant

environmental protection laws and regulations.

In addition to the existing environmental protection laws and
regulations, the PRC government may promulgate new and stricter
environmental protection laws and regulations in the biochemical
industry in the future which may apply to the Group. As a result,
compliance with such legal requirements will become more
burdensome and we may incur additional costs in production process
and operations, which may ultimately adversely affect production
and results of operations. The Safety, Health and Environmental
Committee of the Group oversees relevant environmental policies

affecting the Group’s operations.
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group cares about environmental protection. We have
devoted significant operating and financial resources to ensure
that our production complies with environmental protection laws
and regulations in the PRC. In 2022, there was no incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group.
Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group strives to comply in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations which are regarded as having a significant impact
on the Group, and has not come across incidence of material breach

or non-compliance during 2022.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

We highly value our talents and are committed to providing a safe
work environment to our employees. The Group remunerates its
employees based on their performance, experience and prevailing
market rates while performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary
basis. Other employee benefits include, for example, medical
insurance and training. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in
compliance with national regulations in the areas of equal opportunity

and anti-discrimination.

We have in place safety guidelines and operating manuals setting
out safety measures for the production processes. In accordance
with applicable laws and regulations in the PRC, we provide our
employees with training programs on work safety including trainings
on safe usage of chemicals and machineries, accident prevention and
management. We also conduct regular inspections on our machineries

to ensure compliance with safety standards.
Customers

We strive to provide products of the highest quality to our customers.
Our operations are certified with ISO 9001, GMP and we have
stringent internal quality control procedures in place. We have set
up our own laboratories to conduct product testing as part of our
internal quality assurance. To monitor our customers’ satisfaction, the
Group’s sales teams listen to customers’ needs and opinions. With the
continuous feedback from our customers, we will continue to improve

our product and service qualities.
Suppliers

The Group has set up supplier management policies in accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC to monitor the supplier
selection process. The quality of incoming materials is ensured under a
well-established control process in our production plants. We carefully
choose suppliers that share the same commitment to product quality
and work ethics with us. In our procurement process, suppliers are
evaluated based on a number of assessment criteria, including their
service quality, environmental and social performances, and ability to
supply high-quality products on a consistent basis. We also perform
on-site inspections of suppliers as and when necessary to ensure our

requirements are met.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements in this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to declare a dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022.

The register of members holding ordinary shares of the Company
will be closed from 6 June 2023 to 9 June 2023, both days inclusive,
during which no transfer of ordinary shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to ascertain the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 9 June 2023, all transfer forms for ordinary shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2023.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
five years ended 31 December 2022, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, are as follows:
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WA EE - AEMELS (e E O BN REZ
WBHE) WM ¢

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

SEOCE CRToF CERDRE CFWE D30
US$°000 US$°000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
ELTX  FELTL  FATA  FITx  FELTL

Total assets Mg 350,585 365,216 330,698 292,657 267,712
Total liabilities LA 94,833 81,693 80,088 70,244 58,166
Non-controlling interests FE el 1 E 25 24,902 30,464 22,611 23,224 13,784
Equity attributable to shareholders A/ v Jit M £ i 25

of the Company 230,850 253,059 227,999 199,189 185,762

350,585 365,216 330,698 292,657 267,712

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to AN AL (B#R) /
shareholders of the Company g (6,677) 8,532% 16,255 15,800 21,164
* Excluding gain on factory relocation of US$11,032,000. * LA W B I 5 1,103. 28 9ET8 ©

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 14
to the financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 29 to the financial

statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During 2022, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 34 to the financial statements and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity in this annual report,

respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to US$17,124,000 (2021: US$18,497,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other
purposes amounting to US$91,000 (2021: US$13,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Revenue attributable to the largest customer and the five largest
customers accounted for 22% and 37%, respectively, of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022. The largest customer
was High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”), its subsidiaries and
other associates of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited
(“CPG”) but excluding C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“CPP”) and its
subsidiaries (“CPP Group”). HOEL is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CPG, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Further, one of the five largest customers was CPP Group. CPP is
held as to 75% and 25% respectively by Charoen Pokphand Foods
Public Company Limited and Itochu Corporation, both substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or the Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest

in the Group’s five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the

date of this report were:

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi

Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont
Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a
successive term of three years. All Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election at annual general

meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 99, Mr. Nopadol
Chiaravanont (Executive Director), Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and
Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung (each an Independent Non-executive
Director) will retire and, being eligible, willing to offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Details of each of the above retiring Directors proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company are set out in the circular to the Shareholders to be sent

together with this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the

financial statements in this annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements in this
annual report, none of the Directors or his/her connected entity
had any material interests, whether directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement and contract of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time

during the year or at the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements in this
annual report, there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in
this annual report, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2022 was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures

of the Company or any other body corporate.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s

securities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules — Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) are set

out below:

Directors’ interests in shares of the Company
(Long Positions)
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EERFTETBRAERBEARRAARE AR
FENROREBRONESZR AR

PEFZZETZH = H o R SR KR
Bl 5535 240 L A2 v AR 4y W) A7 2 % AE i # R R > X
s B i B B Bk B B AT NS ST R
2 T W E AT F (TR S ) ) g A 2 ) % Mgk 32 P 3%
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EEREQANER
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued
ordinary

Number of ordinary share capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company

ARAFC#HGT

Pt 4 5 2 i W 38 JBE it A

HHELM £ 4y J& 3 B H WA oy ke

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul Beneficial owner 410,000 0.17%
BB HissEA A

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 625,848 0.26%

RS E T WA A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO:

FTERREBBEZRBEROARERT
REEGRZIAXBHAL

PEFZZETZH = H o R SR KR
Bl 5336 B AE i AR 2 W) i 47 2 B aC i P AT 8% > T
FINL GEARATRMEFREETEANER) RAAFE
VR T % A R P AT O RS R RN E

Approximate

Number of percentage of the

shares and issued ordinary

underlying  share capital of the

Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity shares held Company

A 2 ]

FeA B & O 475 Ak

Jit 3K 44 1 Mat &5 HH A ey B H Ji A WE 207 1 kb

(Note 1) (Note 1)

(HfiaE1) (HfaE1)

Charoen Pokphand Group (2) Interest of controlled corporation 127,748,147 (L) 53.07 (L)

Company Limited ¢ 1) 2; T R A
Charoen Pokphand Foods (2) Beneficial owner and interest of 127,748,147 (L) 53.07 (L)
Public Company Limited controlled corporation
B2 A N T ¥ ) ;R A

CPF Investment Limited (2) Beneficial owner 115,137,370 (L) 47.83 (L)
HaBEA A

ITOCHU Corporation Beneficial owner 60,179,593 (L) 25.00 (L)
7 1 ARG T g Ak X A HusEA A

Notes: M it
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position. (1) LIRS A -

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) held
127,748,147 shares and underlying shares of the Company, which
included (i) 115,137,370 ordinary shares beneficially owned by CPF’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment Limited and (ii) 12,610,777
convertible preference shares beneficially owned by CPF. Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited also declared interest in these
shares by virtue of its shareholding interest in CPF.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no persons (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had any interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited
(TCPF) %¢ 127,748,147 B A 2~ =] JBe 43 Bz il B I
> Ho a5 (i) CPFZ4: % Bf & 2 5] CPF Investment
Limited B % BE A 189115,137,3 70 ¥ 48 )k & (ii) CPF
B HEA P12,610,777)8 W] 462 B B S8 JBE o Charoen
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 18 March 2015. The Share Option Scheme will remain
in force for ten years from the date of listing on 3 July 2015.

The Share Option Scheme was established for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Share
Option Scheme include the Company’s directors, senior executives,
employees of the Group and those persons that, in the opinion of the

Directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the Group.

The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 24,071,831 shares, being 10% of the
total number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue on the date of
listing on 3 July 2015.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme was 24,071,831
ordinary shares, representing 10% of the issued ordinary shares of the

Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible person under the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to the Shareholders’ approval in advance

in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to the Shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Directors but shall commence after the grant and end on a date
which is not later than ten years from the date of grant of the share

options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the date of grant of the
share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary
share of the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the

holders to dividends or to vote at a general meeting.

As at the date of this report, no option had been granted, exercised,

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had entered into
the following continuing connected transactions that are subject to
the Listing Rules’ reporting requirement for disclosure in this annual

report.
2020 Master CPP Purchase Agreement

On 30 July 2020, the Company entered into a master purchase
agreement (the “2020 Master CPP Purchase Agreement”) with C.
P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“CPP”) for the sale and supply of various
chlortetracycline products, animal drugs, animal health products
and other related products produced and/or sold by the Group (the
“Revised CTEI Products”) to CPP and its subsidiaries (the “CPP
Group”). The 2020 Master CPP Purchase Agreement took effect on 1
January 2021 and would continue until 31 December 2023. The 2020
Master CPP Purchase Agreement and the annual caps were approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company on 4 September
2020.

As at 30 July 2020, being the date of the Company’s announcement,
CPF was interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company and was the controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. CPF was also interested
in approximately 49.7% of the issued share capital of CPP. Companies
in the CPP Group were associates of CPF and connected persons of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated
under the 2020 Master CPP Purchase Agreement therefore
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

2020 Master CPP Purchase Agreement (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the 2020 Master CPP Purchase
Agreement was US$14,200,000 and the actual sales recorded
amounted to US$2,017,000.

2020 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement

On 30 July 2020, the Company entered into a master purchase
agreement (the “2020 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement”) with
High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) for the sale and supply of
the Revised CTEI Products by the Group to HOEL, its subsidiaries
and other associates of CPG but excluding the CPP Group (“HOEL
Group”). The 2020 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement took effect
on 1 January 2021 and would continue until 31 December 2023. The
2020 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement and the annual caps were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 4
September 2020.

As at 30 July 2020, being the date of the Company’s announcement,
HOEL was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG and CPG
held 48.4% of CPF’s issued share capital. Due to CPG’s near
majority shareholding in CPF, the Company and CPG have agreed
to treat CPG as a substantial shareholder of the Company and its
subsidiaries and their respective associates as connected persons of
the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions under the 2020 Master HOEL Purchase Agreement
were treated as if they were continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2023 were
subsequently revised and approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company on 23 April 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the approved annual cap
for the transactions contemplated under the 2020 Master HOEL
Purchase Agreement was US$62,000,000 and the actual sales recorded
amounted to US$34,431,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Listing Rules Compliance

The Internal Audit Department has reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and had no material findings
of non-compliance to report to the independent non-executive

Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
Group’s continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better, and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and

in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the
Company has complied with the relevant announcement, circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. KPMG has issued an unqualified letter containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transaction with other related entities with the same shareholders
as CPG, which is disclosed as related party disclosures in note 32 to
the financial statements in this annual report, does not fall under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction, or is fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

and thus is not disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in this annual report in accordance
with the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Directors were not aware that during the year ended 31
December 2022, any of the Directors had interest in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 178, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company.
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance for its Directors and officers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the code
provisions prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year 2022.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

KPMG will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Thanakorn Seriburi
Director

Hong Kong
23 February 2023
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A H

Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG!

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with members’ limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chia
Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 150,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
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statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4(n).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sale of
biochemical products. The Group generally recognises
revenue when products are delivered to the customer’s
premises for domestic sales or in accordance with the terms
and conditions of sale for export sales.

The terms set out in the Group’s sales contracts relating to
goods acceptance by customers are varied. Accordingly, the
terms and conditions of sales contracts may affect the timing
of recognition of sales to customers as each sales contract
could have different terms relating to customer acceptance
of the goods sold.

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and is, therefore, subject to an
inherent risk of manipulation by management to meet
targets or expectations.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

° evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the existence, accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

° challenging the revenue recognition policies adopted
by the Group by making inquiries of management and
inspecting a sample of sales contracts to understand
the delivery terms of the transactions and to assess the
Group’s timing of revenue recognition with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

L inspecting manual adjustments to revenue raised
during the reporting period which met specific risk-
based criteria, enquiring of management the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing the details of the
adjustments with relevant underlying documentation;

o assessing whether revenue had been recognised in
the appropriate accounting period by comparing
a sample of sales transactions around the year end
with relevant underlying documents, which included
customers’ signed acknowledgement of receipt (for
domestic sales) and bills of lading (for export sales);
and

o identifying significant sales returns from the
sales ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate accounting period.
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Assessing potential impairment of investment in joint venture

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4(e).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group holds a 50% equity interest in ECI Metro
Investment Co., Ltd, which is recorded as an investment in
joint venture in the consolidated financial statements. The
investment in joint venture incurred a net loss of US$9.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The carrying
amount of the investment in joint venture is US$102.1
million in the year ended 31 December 2022

As at 31 December 2022, the investment in joint venture
accounted for 46% of the total non-current assets, which is
significant to the consolidated financial statements.

In assessing whether there was any impairment of carrying
value of the investment in joint venture, management
determined the recoverable amount of the investment in
joint venture, which is the higher of its value in use and the
fair value less costs of disposal of the related assets.

In order to determine the value in use amount, management
prepared a discounted cash flow forecast. The preparation
of discounted cash flow forecast involves significant
management judgement, in particular in relation to the
forecasts of future revenue, future margins, future cost
growth rates and the discount rate applied.

We identified the assessment of potential impairment of
investment in joint venture as a key audit matter because
the assessment of any impairment involves the exercise of
significant management judgement, particularly in relation
to the determination of the key assumptions underlying the
discounted cash flow which could be subject to management
bias.

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
investment in joint venture included the following:

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and implementation of management’s key
internal controls in relation to impairment assessment
of investment in joint venture.

o evaluating the appropriateness of the methodology
used by management in its preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecast with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards,
with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists;

o challenging reasonableness of the key assumptions
underlying the discounted cash flow forecast by
comparing the significant inputs, such as future
revenue, future margins and future cost growth
rates, with management’s budgets, and third party
information, where available;

° assessing the discount rate applied in the discounted
cash flow forecast, with the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists, by benchmarking against those
of similar companies in the markets in which the joint
venture operates; and

o performing sensitivity analyses of the key assumptions
underlying the discounted cash flow forecast in order
to assess the potential impact of a range of possible
outcomes and considering whether there was any
evidence of management bias in the selection of
assumptions.
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or

the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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n

B

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the REMBREAREMERRAENER

consolidated financial statements (continued) (#&)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the e
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the e
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other  [RHABZFIHA » FAMBEF T T B @ T 58 095
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant  F}#i B -~ REf 2Pk - B RFFH BB E > SRR MA
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal & &1k Bl H P9 35 352 ) W) A ] B Bl fg o

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have  FRME MBI R E GRAEY » FWHKRMETEE
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence [ %8 37 1t Af #H B S 2L G FR 2R » 36 B M 5@ A W)
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that  G&A BHM B 32 % & 55 28 3 M % > vk 09 BT B & fn 3
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where  fZETE » DL R AETE B 0U G UL T > FH B A% B 46 $5 it -

applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Yip Ka Ming, Alice.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 February 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RE T HWSER

Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

2022 2021
TR TR TR AR
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it FFiL FLF
REVENUE A 5 159,239 142,407
Cost of sales B B AR (120,050) (107,647)
Gross profit Ecy | 39,189 34,760
Other income, net He At e AR 6 237 2,171
Gain on factory relocation T 5t 72 W 2% 6 - 18,610
Selling and distribution costs 8 8 T2 o3 B i AS (13,106) (10,870)
General and administrative expenses T RS E N (21,203) (18,922)
Finance costs B 5 R AR 7 (994) (648)
Share of profits and losses of: JRE AW ¥ 1 % e 18 -
Joint venture HEMRE (9,006) 4,026
Associate W 2% A ) 18(b) 2,134 2,198
(Loss)/profit before tax 5 B8 Wi s 48) %8 8 (2,749) 31,325
Income tax B9 i 11 (1,510) (4,629)
(Loss)/profit for the year A AE (G 18), 7 A (4,259) 26,696
(Loss)/profit attributable to: s A B T
Shareholders of the Company AR ) B3R
Excluding gain on factory relocation A2 W R W A (6,677) 8,532
Gain on factory relocation & 5 4% 28 U 3% - 11,032
(6,677) 19,564
Non-controlling interests I 4 1) ek R
Excluding gain on factory relocation A8 WL R W 2,418 2,345
Gain on factory relocation ik - % e 35 - 4,787
2,418 7,132
(4,259) 26,696
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEtEBER
Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥
2022 2021
Note US cents US cents
Mt F Al FEl
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE A% oy ) B R A 2
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS %% (5 H) /% #l
OF THE COMPANY 13
Basic and diluted FE AR T i
Excluding gain on factory relocation AL R W L 25 (2.64) 3.37
Gain on factory relocation T 2 A B W 2% - 4.35
(2.64) 1.72
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
E ) an 7 on
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AL () % R (4,259) 26,696
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Al 2 i UK A
[tems that may be reclassified HEWVRgERSH
subsequently to profit or loss: FHMZHEA
Exchange differences related to translation B A b 3 5 7 46 5 Ry
of foreign operations FH B = ME 3, 2% (6,277) 2,266
Share of other comprehensive income of: R Ay G Al 2 T WA
Joint venture HEE (9,431) 3,393
Associate R /S | 18(b) (1,770) 558
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 7 45 Alb A T WL i
FOR THE YEAR (17,478) 6,217
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 7 A 4 T WL 4 48 A
FOR THE YEAR (21,737) 32,913
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEzEB R R
Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

2022 2021
Note US$’000 US$’'000
M 7t FIL T 7T FrTx
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 4 1 W %5 ZA % Bt )& 7
Shareholders of the Company A T

Excluding gain on factory relocation A A R 28 2% (22,209) 14,028
Gain on factory relocation g 5 I e 25 - 11,032
(22,209) 25,060

Non-controlling interests I ¥ ) ek e 2
Excluding gain on factory relocation A8 W R L A 472 3,066
Gain on factory relocation i 1 2 W 35 - 4,787
472 7,853
(21,737) 32,913

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the  AN4EJEZ B B 515 R M B MEM FE12M B 5E -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE AR R

At 31 December 2022 W _F -4 +_-HA=1—H

2022 2021
TR TR AR
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t e an FLFo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I i B B R
Property, plant and equipment LESN Y& 14 93,847 92,586
Land lease prepayments FE A 4 A B 15 5,168 5,755
Investments in joint venture NEBLENKRE 17 102,122 120,559
Investments in associate TGS AT IR E 18 19,880 21,838
Other non-current assets At I 35 B 19 246 -
Total non-current assets A Ik B 221,263 240,738
CURRENT ASSETS B &
Inventories pety 20 45,734 36,070
Trade and bills receivables FEWE B R =i 21 40,863 39,559
Prepayments, deposits and FATHRR - R
other receivables At 1 WS HE 3K 22 11,866 17,756
Cash and cash equivalents Ble& kB E&SHEY 23 30,859 31,093
Total current assets A B & 129,322 124,478
CURRENT LIABILITIES B £
Trade payables FEAT & 5 BE 3k 24 18,816 13,279
Other payables and accruals Al A Bk S FE AR 2 25 17,657 14,250
Bank borrowings SRATAE 3K 26 36,844 26,325
Income tax payables JE A B 23 A 3,997 5,301
Total current liabilities 2 Bh A % 77,314 59,155
NET CURRENT ASSETS o )& 52,008 65,323
TOTAL ASSETS LESS A E W
CURRENT LIABILITIES B £ 273,271 306,061
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEEFBMRRE
At 31 December 2022 R _F __4H#+_H=+—H

2022 2021
[T St~ [t Sy
Note US$’000 US$’000
M =7t E e i FILFo
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I T B) £1
Bank borrowings SRATAE 3 26 12,258 16,287
Other non-current liabilities oA I 7 B A 27 2,170 2,370
Deferred tax liabilities B R IE A 28 3,091 3,881
Total non-current liabilities #EJE R B A 17,519 22,538
NET ASSETS g R 255,752 283,523
EQUITY HE #3
Equity attributable to shareholders A 2 ) JBE B ME A HE 75
of the Company
Issued capital AT R 29 25,333 25,333
Reserves i 30 205,517 221,726
230,850 253,059
Non-controlling interests I e ] M 25 24,902 30,464
TOTAL EQUITY HE % 48 5 255,752 283,523

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the
Company on 23 February 2023.

Thanakorn Seriburi Z2&H#
Director #H

RoB o= A L= H A A A A &
ST DLF) 5 o

Thirayut Phityaisarakul 2=44 B
Director # 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

=) HE >< 424
MERZEE R
Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

Al I R A

PRC  Exchange Non-
[ssued Capital reserve fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
g 52 | BE AR bl M s

[1ZS M REES  WERE ik i L ok

US$°000  US$000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$’000  US$’000  US$’000

Enfrx Frifrx Fifr Fxfr Fxfr Fnfr Fifx FEifr
(note 29)  (note 30(b)) (note 30(c)) (note 30(d))
(Wito) (o) (W#E5oc) (W#50(d)

At 1 January 2022 REZBZZE-A-N 25,333 10,845 17,989 16,793 182,099 253,059 30,464 283,523
(Loss)fprofit for the year RE(ER) /A - - - - (6,677) (6,677) 2,418 (4,259)
Other comprehensive income for the year: e AT A
Exchange differences related to translation of ~ HAMEE K RHERZ
foreign operations BB 2% - - - (4,331) - (4331 (1,946)  (6,277)
Share of other comprehensive income of: TEAG S M 2 s
Joint venture RREE - - - 04 - ) - )
Associate BaAT - - - (70 - (L7 - (70
Total comprehensive income for the year A A TH G 4 R - - - (15532) (6,677)  (22,209) 412 (21,137
Transfer in/(out) gA/(h) - - 1,328 - (1,328) - - -
Dividends declared to non-controlling equity & & T JE-4% il b 5 1 3
holders i35 - - - - - - (6,034) (6,034)
At 31 December 2022 REBZZEFZAST-R 25333 10845 19317 1,261 174094 230850 24,902 255,752
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

BER LA

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AA A
PRC  Exchange Non-

Issued Capital reserve fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
g 52 i BE KRR Edetilia M4
12 Ml BES  WBRG ik st M o
Us§000  US$000 US§'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US§000 US$000
Erfr  FErfr Frfr #Fxfr Fxfr FrTfr Frfr Frfx

(note 29)  (note 30(b)) (note 30(c)) (note 30(d))

Wito)  WEEow) i) (W#0()
At 1 January 2021 RZFZ-F—-A—H 15333 10,845 17,417 11,297 163,097 227,999 22,611 250,610
Profit for the year A - - - - 19,564 19,564 1132 26,696

Other comprehensive income for the year: RE L A T A
Exchange differences related to translation of ~ EAMB T I LERF 2 4 B
foreign operations I 4 - - - 1,545 - 1,545 1 2,266
Share of other comprehensive income of: JEAGFC A 2 w25

Joint venture hRLE - - - 3,393 - 3,393 - 3,393
Associate BaAT - - - 558 - 558 - 558
Total comprehensive income for the year W2 AR - - - 5,49 19,564 25,060 1,853 32913
Transfer in/(out) WA/ (1) - - 562 - (562) - - -
At 31 December 2021 RoZ-—#+-H=+—H 1533 10,845 17,989 16,193 182,099 253,059 30464 283,513
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= 3 =
?ﬁ/‘ﬁ é EE ﬁ /Jili ==} %‘:Z
Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E X -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

2022 2021
Note US$’000 US$’000
A FIL T 7T E e n
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEHZIHERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax KR BLRT O 48) A (2,749) 31,325
Adjustments for: R
Bank interest income SRATR BB 6 (368) (76)
Amortisation of government grant BORT i B 4 & (14) (358)
Finance costs B s A 7 994 648
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W B REEZTE 8 6,786 7,409
Amortisation of land lease prepayments THAT LR Y 8 139 147
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - B ek
equipment, net i K1) ¥ 6 110 (59)
Gain on factory relocation e I 4% 7 Wi 2 6 - (18,610)
Share of profits and losses of: R A i P K e 4R
Joint venture HEM¥E 9,006 (4,026)
Associate W 6] 18(b) (2,134) (2,198)
11,770 14,202
Increase in inventories 75 % (12,812) (7,794)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JRE W B 5 Rk B SR R K (4,525) (19,020)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and FE AT HR 3K ~ #54 K H Ath
other receivables JE Wi B 2k Ik A (4 ) 1,945 (939)
Increase in trade payables JRE A B2 5 MRk 444 6,745 4,056
Increase in other payables and J At JE A R 8k B
accruals THHZ & H B om 7,018 564
Cash generated from/(used in) operations wBWRE(hiH) 284 10,141 (8,931)
Interest paid oA FE (1,664) (1,646)
Income tax paid BN EEY A (2,848) (334)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) BEWNBE () Z
operating activities Henags 5,629 (10,911)
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER
Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4
2022 2021
TR TR
Note US$’°000 US$’000
M i F I FiL Er n
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREWHZHERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment WEE W% - W Kk (16,005) (17,552)
Decrease in other non-current liabilities HAth IR 5% B & A - (3,339)
Dividends received from joint venture Qi e/ B - 7,823
Dividends received from associate We B 2 2 ] kB - 2,688
Proceeds from disposal of property, W&~ G M

plant and equipment B 43K EH - 461
Interest received [BAEIDsS 368 76
Net cash flow used in investing activities BEWHEIHMMZ

BRememE (15,637) (9,843)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEH SR

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRATAE KT Skl 23(c) 59,433 34,074
Repayment of bank borrowings 1 92 SR AT A5 R 23(c) (49,048) (12,832)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A I $ il e 2 B B - (1,881)
Net cash flows from financing activities AEEBISZ

Bl & i B 10,385 19,361
NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH  B& KB &% EM K,/

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (WA ) &8 377 (1,393)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year EHIZHE KB E&EHY 31,093 32,258
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net Hb RE 2R 5% B) 2 5% BB (611) 228
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BERZ BB R B &%

AT END OF YEAR k7] 23 30,859 31,093
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Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
Company and its subsidiaries hereinafter are collectively
referred to as the “Group”. The Group and its joint venture
and associate are principally involved in (i) manufacturing
and/or sale of chlortetracycline and other related products;
(ii) trading of machinery; and (iii) manufacturing and sale of

automotive parts respectively.

At 31 December 2022, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using

consistent accounting policies.
Basis of measurement

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$”), and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“US$’000”) except when otherwise indicated. The

functional currency of the Company is United States dollars.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on these financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note

3.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The IASB has issued a number of new standards, amendments
to IFRSs and interpretation that are first effective for the
current year. Of these, the amendments may be relevant to the

Group:

Amendments to IFRS 16  Property, plant and equipment:

Proceeds before intended use

Amendment to IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities
and contingent assets: Onerous
contracts — cost of fulfilling a

contract

None of the new standard, amendment or interpretation have
had a significant financial effect to the Group. The Group has
not applied any new standard, amendment or interpretation

that is not yet effective for the current period.

B AR A

2.1

2.2
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

P

E X &© ¥ 8 B & R

Year ended 31

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
issued a number of new standards and amendments which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group:
[FRS 7 IFRS 7, Insurance contracts'

Amendments to IAS 1
Presentation of financial

Amendments to IAS 1

statements: Classification of
liabilities as current or non-
current!
Amendments to IAS 1 and Amendments to IAS 1, and
[FRS 2 Practice Statement
2

IFRS Practice Statement 2,

Making materiality judgements:

Disclosure of accounting policies'
Amendments to [AS 8,
Accounting policies, changes

Amendments to IAS 8

in accounting estimates and
errors: Definition of accounting
estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and

Amendments to [AS 12°

Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these amendments upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that the impact of adopting
the amendments will have on the consolidated financial

statements are unlikely to be significant.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are

considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into these
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing these financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate

share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 2.4(h) or

(i) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture (see note

2.4(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
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impairment losses (see note 2.4(e)(ii)). 2.4(e)(ii)) °
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions. Significant influence is presumed to exist
when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the

voting power of another entity.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company has joint control, established by contracts
requiring unanimous consent for decisions about the
activities that significantly affect the arrangements’

returns.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in these financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 2.4(e)(ii)).
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment is
impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised as other

comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associate and joint venture (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the

joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as

the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTEETBRME (&)

84

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2.4(e)(ii)):

(i) buildings held for own use which are situated on

leasehold land; and
(ii)  other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production

overheads and borrowing costs (see note 2.4(p)).

Items may be produced while bringing an item of property,
plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. The proceeds from selling any such items and

the related costs are recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the

date of retirement or disposal.

(c)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment to their estimated residual value over the
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used

for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%

Industrial buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment 10% to 33.33%

Motor vehicles and transport

facilities 9% to 33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain

substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract contains lease components and
non-lease components, the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease

components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as

an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in

which they are incurred.

BER LA

24 FEESTHHRBE (&)

(d HEEE

ACHR [ B #9002 RO RE A B K
KA AL o A AR T AE
— B IR [H] 1A 22 ) Tl o) S O D
AL OARART > B0 A 46 i %
R o i % 5 A M o 2w Gl 1 S 1Y
15 % A8 % o P v 28 A8 A A 468
A3 > J 7R TG 4% i R -

il 5 £ R 6 2 #HLEE O R JE AL
gb > ACHR [ AR RUBY oy 51 AL B
g3 Bt i A AL B 2 g A A B A AT
Ay A e e AL B 90 46 % A0 AL B
4o

T RELEE B Ay L > A R e 5 D
BEMMERM WHEY 120 A
Bk B R 4 3O L R KA 5 E Y A
T WA o B AC SR B R (6K AT A 5T oL
RELEE IR o A 5 ) 42 4 JEUREL 466 L o S
RAMHMEEAR - BZEREEA
AL S AR B AL B A ke AL A
Rt B o

WG AL > AL FU A B DA
YT P9 A Ak B AR 8 Sl AL
5 B A AR R A T L R
A s U P R B 20 3 8 sk R 2
Bl o W URHERRAR > FH T 56 DA B R
ACHH B 5 A S B 52 A BR R B A R
WAt o ABGRIA R — IR B R
] LB AR KOS B8 AR AL AR
B PR LA A 2wt R AR
%o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

—®--%%%



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B & R

A H

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 2k MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Leased assets (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-use
assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease

incentives received.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of

the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs
on financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade

and other receivables).
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the

cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the

effect of discounting is material:

° fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an

approximation thereof; and

° variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate.

24 FEESTHHRBE (&)

(e) EERE

(i)

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FEWE 5 R R FE 15 REME
W B 5 B9 6L 1E

SR [ 2 DL S B A ) R 2 4
AL E (BB & KBS HY
0 VAL B oy e A R M k) e
i YIS B 4R 2 M 1R A

BHEEFRTE

TS B 1R 2 15 B0 1R 2 1
HRMHEAG FHE o £ BB R A% A
AEMBE SO (BRESLH
JE A 7 A 4 T i B 6 0 A B A
45 ] R I B A i B 2 ]
i 26 80 Wy B AT & o

il B B 5 B K > QT Bl &
R F1HEER DA BB R A B

. I A2 ) < O E - B
W B 5 B I Al HE W MR
AR O R
Z B A R g IR
i s &

. T RSB EE B
LUNEY A

—®--%%%



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B & R

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M 5

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

° 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

° lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives

of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(e) EERMEGH

(i) BREZGERARZEHEREME
WAk 9 B 1B (A8

BHEEERE ()

il s FE) A5 B0 1 R P % I Y
T 1% JUT i 2 A 48 1 i 3 R
B A = A A A

T R T R 4R > AEE
P 2% A B~ A R T A
KRBT R EAE B RS A v
I EORE o Db IH 5 A B A A
FAE ~ H IR DL B R A AL IR
VLT A ERE o

B35 B0 U DL L o — 1
S R

. 124 A 5 18 -
HeH WA 12 A AT e
B A R A B AN
BB R s K&

. W ENAE R ER B
JH FE ) A5 B s 4R R Y
JH H AN B
RE 3% 2 1R & 2 R T A
TR AR K o

—®--%%%

89



90

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when the
debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held). The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal or

interest on their contractually due dates;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if

available);

° an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating results of

the debtor; and

° existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to

meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past

due status and credit risk ratings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instruments’
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECLs amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a

loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts

subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the

period in which the recovery occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

o land lease prepayments;

o interest in joint ventures accounted

for under the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements (see

note 2.4(b);
° investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial

position

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).
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Year ended 31

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f)

(9)

(h)

U]

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2.4(e)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are

stated at cost less allowance for credit losses.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,

using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would

be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash

flows.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC
government, subsidiaries of the Group in
mainland China are required to make specific
contributions to the state-controlled retirement
plan at rates not more than 16% (before 1 May
2019: 20%) (the percentage to be determined
by each of the government of the provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities) of the
total salaries of the employees in mainland
China. Certain provinces, autonomous regions
or municipalities are overburdened by the
pension insurance due to higher number of
retired people, it is required to make specific
contributions at rates higher than 16%
(before 1 May 2019: 20%) (the percentage
to be determined by each of the government
of the provinces, autonomous regions or
municipalities) of the total salaries of the
employees upon approval of the ministry of
labour and the ministry of finance. The PRC
government is responsible for the pension
liability to the retired employees. The
employees of the subsidiaries are entitled to
a monthly pension at their retirement dates.
The subsidiaries have no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual

contributions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are:

(i) the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination); and

(ii)  temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

BER LA

24 FEESTHHRBE (&)

() Frs® (58)
it 0 30 T R Y A ) Ak
TR

U A 5 2t v A K E
AR i A Y S R AR (HEE R
JaE§ T A 3 A OF B — R A 5 K

(i)

SR B oS 2 ) 45 A B 1
e 2 A (o 2 MR B 22 URR
TP A A ) e ) [ 438 D o S EL
AN KW REAE AT A 2 o] 8% Y 2%
B AP AR > HIR
PG T BEAE AR 2 [E] 48 B 22 90 -

(ii)

i 0 I A AL 0 S B
A e i P B B A5 O 2 TR O R 4%
i o 91 R R A o W A ) B R
B o R A E A % B BRI S B B -

0% 70E 58 YL S 1 I TG L 4% 5 B R
BB > MRS T AT RIS R AR
At it ) A 55 F A R B 85 R i g 2 ke
A ] I 265 Dk W 7 7 T A 4 R R
ot 3 ) IR 98 I o

R M 2 0 2 9F 15 B4 2 A
B I B 3 T W o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

—®--%%%



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B & R

A H

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 2k MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

(ii) in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either; or
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition

policies are as follows:

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Sales
returns are allowed only when the products are
damaged or defective. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, applying the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. As the
remaining performance obligations (if any) is
part of a contract that has an original expected
duration of one year or less, the Group has
applied the practicable expedient in paragraph
121 of IFRS 15 and such information is not
disclosed. Besides, the Group recognises the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract as
an expense when incurred if the amortisation
period of the assets that the Group otherwise
would have recognised is within one year or less,
applying the practical expedient in paragraph 94
of IFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to

receive payment is established.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss

allowance) of the asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation

expense.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation which are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises such
non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

For the purpose of presenting these financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the entities now
comprising the Group denominated in currencies other
than US$ are translated into US$, the presentation
currency of the Group, using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive

income and in equity in exchange fluctuation reserve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale

are interrupted or complete.
Related parties
(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the

Group; or

has significant influence over the Group;

or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Related parties (continued)

(ii)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(a)

(h)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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24 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received a consideration (or an amount of
consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). The Group
receives a certain percentage of the contract value as a
deposit from certain customers, which is recognised as a
contract liability. Contract liabilities are recognised as

revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥
BEASHTHERMEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgments
and estimates:

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

As explained in note 2.4(e)(ii), the impairment loss
for property, plant and equipment is recognised for
the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount when events or changes in
circumstance indicate the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amount of the assets, or,
where appropriate, the cash generating unit to which
they belong, is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
which are based on the best information available
to reflect the amount obtainable at the reporting
date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties,
after deducting the costs of disposal. For the estimation
of value in use, the Group’s management estimates
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
chooses a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value of those cash flows.
(b) Impairment of interest in joint ventures

Management reviews the carrying amounts of the
investments in joint ventures at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. When indication
of impairment is identified, management assesses
the differences between the carrying amounts
and recoverable amounts and makes provision for
impairment loss. Any change in the assumptions
adopted in calculating the recoverable amount would
increase or decrease the provision for impairment loss
and affect the Group’s share of profit or loss of joint

ventures and interest in joint ventures in future years.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

4

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has two

reportable operating segments:

° the biochemical segment is principally engaged in the
manufacture and/or sale of chlortetracycline and other

related products; and

o the industrial segment is principally engaged in the
trading of machinery and the manufacture and sale of
automotive parts, through the Group’s joint venture

and associate.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income, finance
costs and items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate administration

expenses are excluded from such measurements.

Segment assets exclude unallocated corporate assets.
Unallocated corporate assets include cash and cash
equivalents, income tax receivable and other assets that are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated corporate liabilities.
Unallocated corporate liabilities include bank borrowings,
income tax payables, deferred tax liabilities and other

liabilities that are managed on a group basis.

All revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
at the point in time when our customer obtains control of
the promised goods, i.e. when products are delivered to the
customers’ premises for domestic sales or in accordance with
the terms and conditions of sale for export sales. The major
product line of the Group is the manufacture and/or sale of
chlortetracycline and other related products in biochemical

segment as disclosed in note 4(a).
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Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥
OPERATING SEGMENT 4 BESBER (HF)
INFORMATION(continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by WA REF WAL AILE P AE 458
geographical location of customers is disclosed in note 4(b)(i). S B R4 () (i) B 5 o
(a) Reportable operating segments (a) TWEBRKEDTHE
The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and DLF 3% 2 A 45 18 45 01 2 3R 888 0 S
certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information NBRE R CER R AT
for the Group’s reportable operating segments for the H=EZT—HIEEENZKA -~ HiE X
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. HTEE AEKFAXER -
Year ended 31 December 2022 BEFR T A=Z1THIMEE
Biochemical Industrial
operations operations Total
AL H TEREHK M
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FFiL FFiL #JFIL
Segment revenue B A
Sales to external customers WETIREF 159,239 - 159,239
Segment results ik E S
The Group N 8,163 (1,681) 6,482
Share of profits and losses of: R A i B B e 4R
Joint venture GEAE - (9,006) (9,006)
Associate Wk 45 A ] - 2,134 2,134
8,163 (8,553) (390)
Reconciliation: WAEEE
Bank interest income SRATR BB A 368
Finance costs 9B R AR (994)
Unallocated head office and A 43 T A e A £ B X
corporate expenses (1,733)
Loss before tax o 58 iy s 18 (2,749)
Other segment information o ft 4 B B
Depreciation and amortisation iR Y& 1 6,925 - 6,925
Capital expenditure* A B S 15,771 - 15,771
* Including additions to property, plant and equipment. * B E ~ W5 Rt Z Wi -
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Bt 75 ¥R R MY &

4

Total
US$’000
FFi

319,685

30,900

350,585

37,735

57,098

94,833

102,122

E K & ¥ B AE R A A
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31 December 2022 BRE R __4E+_H=+—HIL4F )%
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWUERKLEDIE(E)
At 31 December 2022 RoF T -H=+—H
Biochemical Industrial
operations operations
A AL B T3EEH
US$’°000 US$’000
FFi FIL T
Segment assets NEEE 193,138 126,547
Reconciliation: WETEE
Unallocated corporate assets AR 4> LA 28 A
Total assets A E
Segment liabilities Vg =R 37,716 19
Reconciliation: WEIEHE
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR 43 e A 2 £ %
Total liabilities A
Other segment information H At 43 28 & B
Investments in joint venture REBAENRE - 102,122
Investments in associate R A E R ERE - 19,880

19,880
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Year ended 31 December 2022 E_F - _FF_H=1—HILFEE
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 BESBER (HF)
(continued)

(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKLEDIE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021 BREZF- -+ A=+ —HILEE
Biochemical Industrial

operations operations Total
AL EH THEW A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

FIL T 70 Tt FoT Tt

Segment revenue Vg LN
Sales to external customers HETIRE P 142,407 - 142,407
Segment results o3 8 3 A
The Group A4 28,665 (1,131) 27,534
Share of profits and losses of: A A i B B s 4E

Joint venture e - 4,026 4,026

Associate I 2 ] - 2,198 2,198

28,665 5,093 33,758

Reconciliation: WETEE
Bank interest income SRAT A B WA 76
Finance costs 5 AR (648)
Unallocated head office and corporate 7 43 B 42 38 S 4> & B 3%

expenses (1,861)
Profit before tax 5% 56 iy ¥z Al 31,325
Other segment information LAt 43 28 5 B
Depreciation and amortisation -V E ¥ 7,541 15 7,556
Capital expenditure* B A B S 13,515 - 13,515
* Including additions to property, plant and equipment. * BEEYZE > W B st Z B Hg -
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Total
A
US$’000
Enyan

334,029

31,187

365,216

29,162

52,531

81,693

120,559

E K & ¥ B AE R A A
Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 ] 3 Mt &=
Year ended 31 December 2022 BRE R __4E+_H=+—HIL4F )%
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWUERKLEDIE(E)
At 31 December 2021 W_F_—#+-_HA=+—H
Biochemical Industrial
operations operations
ML 2E T TEEW
US$’000 US$’000
FILFIT FoL For
Segment assets 5 JHE R 186,447 147,582
Reconciliation: WEIEE -
Unallocated corporate assets AOBAEERE
Total assets A A
Segment liabilities A 29,123 39
Reconciliation: TEIEE
Unallocated corporate liabilities A4 WA A
Total liabilities =R
Other segment information It 43 28 % B
Investments in joint venture REBAENRE - 120,559
Investments in associate i RN R U ' 2 - 21,838

21,838
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Bt 7% 3R 3k M EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 K E _-F - "4+ H=+—H IL4)¥
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 reEHER (E)
(continued)
(b)  Geographical information (b) HEZEH
(i) Revenue from external customers ()  RESPKEFZKA
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
Sy an FEoLFoo
Mainland China PN 83,294 70,466
Americas FEM 29,099 30,652
Asia Pacific 0K M
(excluding mainland China) (A B 955 o 13 K ) 24,354 27,110
Europe B 16,430 7,623
Elsewhere H Al b 7 6,062 6,556
159,239 142,407
The revenue information shown above is based EFW A E R TG % P A
on the location of customers. 4yHE o
(i) Non-current assets (i) FunBEE

(c)

At 31 December 2022, 99% (2021: 99%) of
the Group’s non-current assets are located in

mainland China.

BRI AS
H o> ASEM 99% (T 4
99%) 2 L B8 4 % o

KB

Information about major customers (c)y EEEFEH

The Group had the following customer (including

sales to entities are known to the Group to be under

A H BT &P (B 45 SR A SR 1 i
3 i % PG [ J52 o v T A G A )

common control with this customer) with whom ZRGHEBEAREDRENBAR
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue 10%
during the year:
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
0T 7L EF
High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) High Orient Enterprises Limited
and its related entity, excluding CPP ([HOELJ) K H B #AZ > R
Group BIE L 34,431 31,829
An independent third party customer from —HL3R B MBI E = E
United States F 16,429 18,940
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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B 75 ] 3 Mt &=
Year ended 31 December 2022 BRE R __4E+_H=+—HIL4F )%
5 REVENUE 5 KA
Revenue represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of We A3 B 3% 1 B8 B BORF B g > iR &
goods sold, net of value-added tax and government surcharges, KB 5 P futg Z B 6 B 8 5 A A B
and after allowances for goods returned and trade discounts ToF 75 e o5 o B AH 1550 0 o I P AR o B 4R
recognised within the scope of IFRS 15. All of the Group’s Bz W A RKE B LEE -
revenue is from the biochemical segment.
6 OTHER INCOME, NET 6 Hitt A F8
An analysis of other income, net is as follows: HABUW A F#H BT -
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
# L F T FILFIT
Bank interest income ATH BB A 368 76
Government grants BUR #l B 1,030 1,260
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WE K&k
equipment, net (G 18) v F) i 4 (110) 59
Foreign exchange differences, net AW BT 5 2% B (1,620) 217
Others H Ay 569 559
237 2,171
Gain on factory relocation* TR 2 7 W 2 - 18,610
237 20,781
* In November 2016, Zhumadian Huazhong Chia Tai Co., * N —NE+T—H > BEE)EHFE P IE KR

Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, entered into a relocation

agreement (the “Relocation”) with the People’s Government

of Zhumadian City. The Relocation, as part of Zhumadian’s

urban development plans, was completed in July 2021. The

gain on factory relocation was arising from government

compensation.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 E_F - _FF_H=1—HILFEE
FINANCE COSTS 7 B 7% B A<
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
E e FoLF oL
Interest expense on bank borrowings AT R Z A B E 1,664 1,646
Less: Interest expense capitalised* W R B & Ak (670) (998)
994 648
& Interest expense was capitalised at interest rate based * F) 2 2 B ARV TG 3 A B K i ok 2 AR R R
on the respective loan facilities of 3.75% - 6.87% per 3.75%F5.35% (B = —: ERRIS%E
annum (2021: 3.5% - 5.4% per annum) 5.4%) FF5E o
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8 RR B B s R
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging: 74 £ 55 A i ¥ ) A8 1 B R B 450
2022 2021
Y- Sy R
Note US$’000 US$’000
it BV n FoL T T
Cost of inventories sold [BAREF =S ST WN 120,050 107,647
Depreciation of property, plant and Yk~ MG Rt
equipment ZPieEE 14 6,786 7,409
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TEAT A+ b A B 2 5 15 139 147
Impairment of trade receivables, net JE W B B W ik DA T A (78) 220

Expense relating to short-term leases (lease B AL & (R B S5 R sk A
term of 12 months or less) and/or leases of  R12MA A ) 5 K& SKAKE &

low-value assets EMEZEN 370 357
Auditors’ remuneration A% S0 F T 4 240 215
Employee benefit expenses (including g B A 52 (B S 4 -

directors’ emoluments — note 9) B} 59)

Wages, salaries and benefits in kind TE& -~ #H4e MIEBLF 2 24,365 17,411

Pension scheme contributions RN 1,631 1,719
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B 7% R 3R MY EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9 EEME
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) MWIETE A BRG] E383 (IR AT (IEE
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the FHIZER) BHIE W s EHEME
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BT :
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Salaries,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Fi e R
we  EHENE Mt RkERH A
US$°000 U8$°000 US$°000 US§$°000 US$°000
ELFI ELFi EHFI ELFi EiLFi
Year ended 31 December 2022 BREZZZEFZHZLH
IR
Chairman and non-executive director: EEYESITEE N
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont #WHENEE - - - - -
Executive directors: UEF:
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul BB - - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi ERRELE - 532 - - 532
Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont RN - - - - -
Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun B - 501 94 - 595
- 1,033 94 - 1,127
Non-executive director: FULESE: - - - - -
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe iRk - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BB
M. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom %64 31 - - - 31
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo WEE A 31 - - - 31
M. Edward Ko Ming Tung il 31 - - - 31
93 - - - 93
Total directors’ emoluments HHW A A% 93 1,033 94 - 1,220

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

—®--%%%



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K & % B A R 4 7
Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3k M EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9 EEME ()
Salaries,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Fim e R
we  EHEME Wl BRIk E R A
US$°000 US§$°000 US$°000 US§$°000 US$°000
#rtr ELFi EHFi EiLFi EiLFi
Year ended 31 December 2021 R S i S s
I3
Chairman and non-executive director: EHEREUGES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont E RPN - - - - -
Executive directors: UEF:
M. Thirayut Phityaisarakul BRBRAE - - - - _
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi L3 L - 532 - - 532
Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont ANt - - - - -
Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun BEEEAe - 374 61 - 435
- 906 61 - 967
Non-executive director: FHfTES:
Mr. Yoichi Tkezoe Wi — A - - - - _
Independent non-executive directors: BukanEs:
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom &4 31 - - - 31
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo WA A 31 - - - 31
Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung i W SR 2 2 31 - - - 31
93 - - - 93
Total directors’ emoluments HHEW A A% 93 906 61 - 1,060
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Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emolument
was paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of
office (2021: nil), and there was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2021:

nil).

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2021: two) directors. Details of the emoluments are set out in
note 9 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2021:

three) non-directors are as follows:

B

EEME ()

REEZFDEF A= HIREE
A 455 ] S 08 S A PO < 4 9 S DL B A A AR SR
V) sl A o N A SR [ U AT T AR T 785 %
(ZF s ) > 0l 48 38 o il 9 o IF) R
RALMMEZ L (ZF M) -

TNBEHFMES

BN Toh B R R IE B AR (2R
4 2fr) H > RN SRR B
WFRED o BR F3fL (ZF 4 : 3fr) JE#HFZ
B E

2022 2021

—® —B 4

US$’000 US$’000

E e an FILFo

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind - A & JEB A A 2 677 635
Discretionary bonus 1% 6 4L 60 49
737 684

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

emoluments fell within the following bands is set out

B R 3 I 0 R A Bk DL B0 4 8
mE

below:
2022 2021
R TR TR
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A # A%
US$128,001 to US$192,000 (equivalent to 128,001 78 % 192,0003 76
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000) (H % 1#%1,000,001 # 7T =
1,500,000% J¢) 1 1
US$192,001 to US$256,000 (equivalent to 192,0013% 78 256,000 75
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000) (FH B ¥ 1,500,001 % 6 &
2,000,000% ) - _
US$256,001 to US$320,000 (equivalent to 256,00134 58 &320,0003E J&
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000) (FH % 742,000,001 76 =
2,500,000 JT) 2 2
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B % ] & Mt &=
Year ended 31 December 2022 E_F - _FF_H=1—HILFEE
10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10 HEUBSHMES (&)
(continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emolument was REE_F_-__#+_H=+—HIL&EE
paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees A 8 NI S S A TN 4 4R A e R TR B 2
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group as LA — 4L > DL i AAS 45 [ s A i A\ AR 45
compensation for loss of office (2021: nil). W ARG RERE (CE_—F
) o
11 INCOME TAX 11 s
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the A S ) A A4 BE SR A AE A s LA R R
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in WA Fr LRI AE WAEF R B H (Z
Hong Kong during the year (2021: nil). BT ) o
Subsidiaries operating in the People’s Republic of China ML B A RS BLALR) > e A R IE
(“PRC”) are subject to income tax at the rate of 25% (2021: ] ([ B ) #8048 2 Bt Je 2 ) 7 it G LB U
25%) on their taxable income according to the PRC corporate AIEBLR25% (B —4 1 25%) A i 153
income tax laws. In accordance with the relevant tax rules and Bt o AR b B 2 FH R B S R R 2 ) 0 AR R
regulations in the PRC, certain subsidiaries of the Group in 7 P B 2 T B R s ) A e s B
the PRC enjoy income tax exemptions or reductions. BBz .
2022 2021
Note US$’°000 US$’000
Mt FL T FILFIL
Current — the PRC AR — PH
Charge for the year A JE 999 3,963
(Over)/under-provision in prior years 4R A5 (273) 100
Deferred A St 28 785 566
Total tax expense for the year A AE JEE R TE 48 57 1,510 4,629
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Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4
11 INCOME TAX (continued) 11

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for PRC in which the Group

principally operates to the tax expense is as follows:

B

FriEwt ()

2 v 0 (A 5 1) s B T M R ) Y 9 B R B
B e I 5t i v ) 44 v A5 I ) BB I o
AR B R R

2022 2021
- Sy TR
US$’000 US$’000

7 T 70 FL T

(Loss)/profit before tax KB ar (48 ) %l (2,749) 31,325
Tax expense on profit before tax, calculated at e op I A SE R AR BB R 25% K

the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% R o iy ez A w5 55 B B % 32 (687) 7,831
Lower tax rates enacted by local i S M I B SR AR 2 BRI

tax authority iR (794) (2,757)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the Fi A 4 [ 7 v B 2 R A D

distributable profit of the Group’s subsidiaries, BB AR A W) W 43 T

joint venture and associate in PRC A EH A BBL10% Z 5 782 687
Under-provision in prior years A8 5T R (273) 100
Profits and losses attributable to JEAG & 8 4> 3 K 2 )

joint venture and associate ez A1) % g 48 1,718 (1,556)
Expense not deductible for tax AL AL 32 764 324
Tax expense at the Group’s PR AR A OB R FH

effective tax rate B 7 1,510 4,629

12 DIVIDEND 12 BKRE

The Board has resolved not to declare a dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

13

E X

i ¥ B B AR D H

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 3R 3k M EE

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 ALATARRELEZER (EE) &
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF F

THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the

Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

and convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on

TR () A &8 2 5HH TR A
O] SRR A AAE E (540 /Wi Al RAE N B
BEAT 20 9 B S T A5 B St BT R - 3%

B A (4R /R 5 AR 98 DL T S0 Rt

the following data: o
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
E e Eran
(Loss)/earnings (5 8) i #l
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to P 5154 B e AR i Al 2
shareholders of the Company, used in AR ) B SR AR
the basic earnings per share calculation JEAL (5 18) i A1)
Excluding gain on factory relocation A4 E R 98 K 2 (6,677) 8,532
Gain on factory relocation it I 5t 78 WL A - 11,032
(6,677) 19,564
2022 2021
Shares Ji& 13
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and FIR B B R AR A Z
convertible preference shares in issue during AAE DT Z % R K
the year, used in the basic earnings per share EE: Y- L
calculation S ¥ 8 253,329,087 253,329,087
As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during N R R —FE+_H=1+—H

the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the amount

of diluted (loss)/earnings per share is equal to basic (loss)/

earnings per share.

Al o
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

~

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE-BERZE
Furniture, Motor
fitures  vehicles and
Industrial Plant and and office transport  Construction
buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
Bl %8R RURERR
IEBE  HERRE i it f fii FRIE b
Note US $'000 US $'000 US $'000 US $'000 US $'000 US $'000
(note (a))
(Witta)
At 1 January 2022 RZFZZE-R-R:
Cost Bk 50,806 69,976 11,686 1,615 19,977 154,060
Accumulated depreciation and A R
impairment (13,204) (41,281) (5,845) (1,144) - (61,474)
Net carrying amount Rl 37,602 28,693 5,841 411 19,977 92,586
Net carrying amount: W
At January 2022 e Swat g B! 37,602 28,695 5,841 411 19,977 92,586
Additions e 180 1,358 969 9 13,167 15,771
Depreciation provided during the ~ 4E g HR AT E
year 8 (2,076) (3,267) (1,352) (91) - (6,786)
Transfer in/(out) g1/ 97 2,363 - 5 (2,465) -
Disposals HE (1) (49) (33) (27) - (110)
Exchange realignment iR (2,939) (2,738) (99) (35) (1,803) (7,614)
At 31 December 202 RZZZZHEFZAZ—H 32,863 26,362 5,326 420 18,876 93,847
At 31 December 2022 REFTTELTAZER
Cost Bk 47,078 67,957 11,677 1,562 28,876 157,150
Accumulated depreciation and ZHE R
impairment (14,215) (41,595) (6,351) (1,142) - (63,303)
Net carrying amount e 32,863 26,36 5,326 420 28,876 93,847
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K

i % B B AR

A H

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 2k MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE- -BERRE(E)
(continued)
Furniture, Motor
fixtures vehicles and
Industrial Plant and and office transport Construction
buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
R %ER  RERER
LY HRRES YN |} 3 AN &
Note US §000 US §000 US $°000 US $°000 US $°000 US $°000
Wi Frtr Frtr Frtr Frtr Frtr Frtr
(note (a))
(Hi#tt)
At 1 January 2021 REFZ-HE-J—H.
Cost WA 41,766 80,788 12,595 1,604 10,49 157,47
Accumulated depreciation and 2 E R
impairment (11,515) (49,902) (6,012) (1,166) - (68,595)
Net carrying amount TR 30,251 30,886 6,583 438 20,494 88,052
Net carrying amount: IR
At 1 January 2021 RZZZ—FE—-H—H 30,251 30,886 6,583 438 20,494 88,652
Additions e - - 49 48 13,418 13,515
Depreciation provided during the ~ 4F W47 &
year 8 (1,893) (3937) (1,465) (114) - (7409)
Transfer in/(out) g1/ 8,602 4025 1,763 81 (14471) -
Disposals & (267) (3,038) (1,30) - - (4377)
Exchange realignment TS 909 779 163 18 536 2,405
At 31 December 2021 RZZZ-H+ZH=4-H 37,602 18,693 5,841 411 19,977 92,586
At 31 December 2021 [ S = Sl i
Cost WA 50,806 69,976 11,686 1,615 19977 154,060
Accumulated depreciation and 2 E R
impairment (13,204) (41,281) (5,845) (1,144) - (61,474)
Net carrying amount TR 37,601 28,695 5,841 411 19977 92,386
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E K f&© ¥ B AR & A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B M
Year ended 31 December 2022 BRE R __4E+_H=+—HIL4F )%
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE-BRERZE (&)
(continued)
Notes: M EtE -
(a) At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s industrial (a) MR THETA=Z—H s KEFHE
buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of US$8,824,000 wl R H T 45882 4B S0 (I F L —4F ¢
(2021: US$5,375,000) were pledged to secure certain bank 53758 I0) 24 T L¥EME » O/EAAR
borrowings of the Group (note 26(a)). B 5 T SRAT A K A HE P (M 26 () o
(b) Ownership certificates of certain properties with an aggregate (b) A HEFTZAZ+—H s REEW
carrying amount of US$298,000 (2021: US$331,000) at 31 A A wl R AL 22988 Ko (B —
December 2022 are yet to be obtained. A I33AHEEIE) XA TR A RE
o
15 LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 15 FBENLTwHEEE
2022 2021
Note US$’°000 US$’000
M 7t B o FoTox
Carrying amount at 1 January W—H— HRmEE 5,755 5,910
Amortisation provided during the year A N PR B 8 (139) (147)
Disposal & - (159)
Exchange realignment e e, i % (448) 151
Carrying amount at 31 December R HA=Z+—HEmE 5,168 5,755
Note: Mt -
At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s leasehold land with an N E+YHAH=Z+—H KEFEGFER
aggregate carrying amount of US$4,924,000(2021: US$5,473,000) {E %5492 4B FET0 (B - —4 1 54738 K1) 28
were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group (note T A0 A b O A 2 A4 2 1 SRAT A AR Z AT
26(a)). (B EE26(a)) °
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

16

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M 5

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost. Particulars of the

principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of  Nominal value of

incorporation/ issued and

Company name operations paid-up capital

C#fT Rk

A4 JT./ 8 i B R A T

Pucheng Chia Tai Biochemistry Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB189,890,000

(Notes (i) and (i) BB 189,890,000 A R

WIE R EACE WA (ML) K (i)

Zhumadian Huazhong Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB72,000,000

(Notes (i) and (i) B,/ 72,000,000\ B
BEFG R 3 b IE KA A H (W REG) R (i) W

Notes:

(i) The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The English

name is for identification purpose only.
(ii) Registered as a contractual joint venture under the PRC law.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
Group’s profits and losses or formed a substantial portion of the
Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

REBARNKRE

TP BEE Jag 2 A B4 TG e R AR B B o 4% T2 BEHE
J&§ 2w Z FERE R

Percentage of attributable
equity interest held by

Company Group Principal activities
WA 5 A T M

AR A FEEH

- 69.7% Manufacturing

and sale of

chlortetracycline and
other related products
WER/ HELBERK
4 B E

- 69.7% Manufacturing
and sale of

chlortetracycline and

other related products

WER/ HELRERK

Al A 7

Wi :

(i) B ALNE R L € RS &y
1 S -

(i) AR b A A A A

B R B R Z A 4 R A E > R
Fy > RSB PSR A AN AC SR [
B RHEBA o B GE Ry > B T AT At B
AR AR B R R R TR -
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K & #¥ B A& R 4 7
Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R MY EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 #& £ _F -~ "4+ _H=+—HILEE
17 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURE 17 REELENER
2022 2021
TR TR AR
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t Sy an FoLFoo
Interests in joint venture, included in non- A A B AERNRER » LRIk
current assets: MBEEN :
Share of net assets JRE Ay B (a) 102,122 120,559
Interests in joint venture HEEASENVRERS 102,122 120,559

Notes:

(a)

Particulars of the principal joint venture, which is indirectly

held by the Company, are as follows:

Wik :

A A W) B R AT 2 B A SRR
T

(a)

Percentage of

RAEASL

Place of Nominal value of Interest
incorporation/ issued and  attributable to Principal
Company name operations paid-up capital the Group  Profit sharing activities

By =% ZF A 4 1
AR B B30 R TR AR i JRE A BE 2 JRE A w6 ) ELiE 37
ECI Metro Investment British Virgin US$12,000,000 50% 50% Investment
Co., Ltd. Islands/ 12,000,0003¢ 58 holding and
SR B B A R A W] Hong Kong trading of
e Jg A T T machinery and
R A spare parts

ECI Metro Investment Co., Ltd (“ECI Metro Investment”)
was established by the Group with an independent third party
investor, to distribute Caterpillar products in the western part

of the PRC.

ECI Metro Investment is an unlisted corporate entity whose

quoted market price is not available.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

17

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 2k MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

REELENES (H)

E K & ¥ B A R 2 7
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURE 17
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mt - (%)
(b) Summarised financial information of ECI Metro Investment (b)

and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “ECI Metro Group”),

adjusted for any differences in accounting policy, and a

B R BOR B AR 0 2 SR AR R R AR - B )
WP 30 4% S % L O G 2 ) (A [ 50 0 W i 4
B D) o B R > AR B R 1 IR

reconciliation to the carrying amount in these financial

statements, are disclosed below:

[IRCESEEi a3

2022 2021
U o Sty
US$’000 US$’000
F L Fi FoLFo
Gross amounts of ECI Metro Group’s: Sy 01 WA D) T 4 TE Y R

Currents assets g 263,600 309,624

Non-current assets LR B G A 55,147 73,530

Current liabilities WA fE 101,710 123,102

Non-current liabilities B B A A 12,794 18,934

Equity HE 2 204,243 241,118
Included in the above assets and liabilities: #F A | %l & & M 1% :

Cash and cash equivalents Bl& B &%EY 70,042 67,665
Revenue WA 327,026 536,659
(Loss)/profit from operations mE (ER),HwH (18,011) 8,050
Other comprehensive (loss)/income 2w (), 3k (18,863) 6,787
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2 (O H ),/ W2k 44 % (36,874) 14,837
Included in the above (loss)/profit: st LAk (E#8),wA

Depreciation and amortisation R B (7,190) (10,716)

Interest income B WA 1,350 1,130

Interest expense A E#EH (887) (2,204)

Income tax credit (expense) Fr B S, () 3,281 (1,129)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest B A 4 8 A 5 %1 W % 4

in ECI Metro Group: HRE 2 1) SR -

ECI Metro Group’s net assets 55 %) B 4 4 [ A 204,243 241,118

Group effective interest 7 55 B AT RUORE A 50% 50%

Carrying amount in the consolidated B A B 25 i A A MR i

financial statements 102,122 120,559
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

indirectly held by the Company, are as follows:

Place of

Nominal value of

incorporation/ issued and paid-up

Company name operations capital
s,/ (%2 E )3

YANHEA B SR B AR i
Zhanjiang Deni Vehicle Parts PRC/PRC US$21,250,000
Co., Ltd. g, v 21,250,000%7¢

LS B AR A R A

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

T

Percentage of

FHEHESL

Interest

attributable to

the Group  Profit sharing
A4

JRE AV i it JRE A % A

28% 28%

E K & #¥ B A& R 4 7
Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R MY EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4
18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE 18 REZEATINER
2022 2021
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t Sy an FoLFoo
Interests in associate, included in non- G AT R RERS »
current assets: BERIEREEEN :
Share of net assets FEAY B (a) 19,880 21,838
Due from associate, included in JFE WL W 2% A\ W) K OE
prepayments, deposits and other AR AR
receivables 5 4 oo A M WRCHR 3K 4,523 5,161
Interests in associate T 4% Oy B W RE 25 24,403 26,999
Notes: Wit
(a) Particulars of the principal associate, which is (a) HAA v R A 2 R A A W

Principal

activities

EF 374

Manufacture
and sale of

automotive parts

ST
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K & ¥ B AR 2 A
18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATE 18
(continued)
Notes: (continued)
(b) The Group’s interests in associate are regarded as not

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 2k MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

individually material. The following table summarises, in

RBE QTR NERS (&)

Mfat - (A7)

(b) AR A S S0 AR 2 B0 T K 0 B 4 )
PR o T A MR DA 25 3k 5 AR A g 4

aggregate, the financial information of the associate that are W] ) B R R T
accounted for using the equity method:
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
F L Fi S/ arn
Carrying amount in the consolidated T i B 785 i A 1 M i
financial statements 19,880 21,838
Amounts of the Group’s share of associate: A4 ] FEAL B s A T
Profit from operations 78 8 Yas A 2,134 2,198
Other comprehensive income T (1,770) 558
Total comprehensive income 2 i W 35 4B 364 2,756
19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HttFERBEE

The Group’s other non-current assets as at 31 December 2022

represent deposits paid for land use right.

ALEMPZFZET A= R AL
I I B A L A R 4 o

20 INVENTORIES 20 #E
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
EVTnl an FLFo
Raw materials B B 6,971 7,426
Work in progress TE 8 20,149 10,961
Finished goods 2 18,614 17,683
45,734 36,070
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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21

E K &© ¥ B A& R 4 7
Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3R MY EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 #& £ _F -~ "4+ _H=+—HILEE
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES EWESRIRERE
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
< i FLF
Trade receivables JRE Wi B B R 3k 40,863 39,480
Bills receivable U 2 - 79
40,863 39,559

Depending on the requirements of the market and business,
the Group may extend credit to its customers. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management
and interest may be charged by the Group for overdue trade
receivables at rates determined by the Group with reference
to market practice. In the opinion of the directors, there is no

significant concentration of credit risk. Further details on the

PP 5 B TR AR BT EF
fis 529 o A 42 ) 3B A O MR Kk R B A% 2 B
Vi o PR J5 WA AR Z AR > K WD
HE B 12 AC SR [ 2 75 7 5 A1) A R 2 ) R
AR o EER A > ALE R A WHE
o R B o A B AR B £ R BOR
B 5 Wk e S P A A R L R Y
RE33(b) o AR [ E W B2 5 M sk I S o 2 R

Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade and SAT(LEE B AR )T .
bills receivables are set out in note 33(b). An aging analysis
of the Group’s trade and bills receivables, based on the date of
delivery of goods, is as follows:
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve F T
Trade and bills receivables: JE W 2 Bk B S
60 days or below 60H LT 18,117 22,244
61 to 180 days 61%180H 14,746 11,824
Over 180 days Z ¥ 180H 8,000 5,491
40,863 39,559
Note: M EE -

Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2022
were aggregate amounts of US$18,861,000 (2021: US$17,227,000) due
from related companies, arising from transactions carried out in the
ordinary course of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured,
bear interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and are
repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by the Group to

its independent third party customers.
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E X &© ¥ 8 B & R

A H

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R & M 5

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22 FEMNER - RERHMEWKERR
RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
F 7t T 7 FKIT T T
Income tax receivables HAT B3 HL - 3
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEATERGK ~ 248 B H Al R K 11,866 17,683
11,866 17,756

Note:

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables
as at 31 December 2022 was an aggregate amount of US$4,523,000
(2021: US$5,161,000) and US$20,000 (2021: US$13,000) due
from associate and related companies respectively. The balances are

unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed terms of repayment.

M &k«

AREEMPR BT AZS b HZEAER
$ & Kb EBOR P > B A FH52.38 %0 (2
B 51618 K L) R2oE KT (R _—
A L3EETE) 400k MEWORR A R R A R 2
ARIE o % ORI MR - S0 )5 B S B A o

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 23 RE2Ek#TEIRRHEMBAELSHTER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
E e an FEILFo
Cash and bank balances Bl RBATER
other than time deposits (A B35 2 91 17 3%) 9,861 7,785
Time deposits E A 20,998 23,308
Total cash and bank balances B4 M SRATAE R AR R 30,859 31,093

Notes:

(a) At 31 December 2022, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to RMB37,429,000 equivalent to US$5,424,000 (2021:
RMB35,664,000 equivalent to US$5,501,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB into other currencies through banks authorised

to conduct foreign exchange business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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T4 s NRH3,566.488 50 > L 550.1
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E X &© ¥ 8 B &FR 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 5 3R & MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 23

RERBITERREMBRERESN

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods depending on the cash requirement of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The table below sets out changes in the group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash flow will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as

cash flows from financing activities.

(%)

(b)  AEHUR AT B 3R 5 HERAT IR B A K
A B o RIBALBEHBENT R
AT PR 45 1 A o SRR AR W]
REIAE R G Z G o SRAT K5 B3 R
AT 0 S48 R B T A B LA R ARAT o

(c)  FE I BT A W BB R B A

AT 4 R A B A AR R AR
b > B45 K B Bl AR IR B 0 - fil
9 B0 T S A O AR B i B R AR B
GBS F 7R WA A Bl R R b
R T S 5 P 4 B AR A

Total bank

borrowings

ST Sk A

US$’000

FILTIT

At 1 January 2021 BB —H—H 20,502
Changes from financing activities cash flow: lE B A )

Proceeds from bank borrowings SRAT A R 153K = 34,074

Repayment of bank borrowings 18 32 SRAT G R (12,832)

Total changes from financing activities cash flows AL & AR ) 21,242

Exchange realignment JeBE e, 3 868

At 31 December 2021 and RoRT T AZtHR

1 January 2022 R __H—H—H 42,612
Changes from financing activities cash flow: AlE B AR )

Proceeds from bank borrowings SRAT A 3K B A9 3K00H 59,433

Repayment of bank borrowings PR ERATAG 3K (49,048)

Total changes from financing activities cash flows REB SRS 52,997

Exchange realignment e e, i (3,895)

At 31 December 2022 RoRT AT A=+ —H 49,102
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E X &© ¥ 8 B ER D

Notes to the Financial Statements

B % ] & Mt &=
Year ended 31 December 2022 E_F - _FF_H=1—HILFEE
TRADE PAYABLES 24 BENESEX
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of 7 A [ T U1 R A B 5 R Ak = R B 4 M
the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (DB HH B R®) T :
follows:
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
0T 7L FoLF oL
60 days or below 60HZ LT 15,535 12,331
61 to 180 days 61%180H 2,592 647
Over 180 days £ j*180H 689 301
18,816 13,279
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25 HittEAERREREARER
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
BV ForTx
Contract liabilities A H 2,847 1,880
Accruals THPEE R 3,611 5,746
Other payables Al JRE A MR 3K 11,199 6,624
17,657 14,250

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has contract liabilities
of US$2,847,000 (2021: US$1,880,000), which represents
the obligation to transfer goods to customers for which the

consideration has been received.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was a
decrease of US$1,434,000 in the contract liabilities (2021:
US$2,341,000) as a result of recognising revenue and an
increase in contract liabilities of US$2,401,000 (2021:
US$1,880,000) as a result of deposits received prior to goods

delivery.

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals as at 31
December 2022 were an aggregate amounts of US$341,000
(2021: US$121,000) due to related companies. The balances
with related companies are unsecured, interest-free and have

no fixed terms of repayment.
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W > R HE RO T B BA AR E T k1434
BT (TR 4 23418 3%70) KH%
15 A TEICRT 4 48 B A 40 AL E 8240198 5500
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BER LA

B 7% R 3R MY EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 #& £ _F -~ "4+ _H=+—HILEE
26 BANK BORROWINGS 26 RBITER
2022 2021
Note US$’000 US$’000
Mt E e an FLFo
Bank loans, secured AR AT AR 5k (a) 18,269 18,898
Bank loans, unsecured 48 FE A R AT 45 3K 30,833 23,714
Total bank borrowings SRAT G sk A (b), (c) 49,102 42,612
Analysed into amounts repayable: BREwEsil
Within one year or on demand —4E N B R TR 36,844 26,325
In the second year ) == 11,875 13,241
In the third to fifth year NE=FE LA 383 3,046
Total bank borrowings SRAT A AR AE 5 49,102 42,612
Portion classified as current liabilities S HE R B A A (36,844) (26,325)
Non-current portion IE 7 B B4 12,258 16,287
Notes: Mt -

(a) At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment of US$8,824,000 (2021: US$5,375,000) (note
14(a)) and land lease prepayments of US$4,924,000 (2021:
US$5,473,000) (note 15) were pledged as security for bank
borrowings of the Group.

(b) All the bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in
RMB.
(c) As at 31 December 2022, none of the covenants relating to

bank borrowings had been breached (2021: nil).

(a) MRo-F_—_#H#+-A=+—H > K&EH
ZHETWE - WG R #E882.48 3L (=
FT4E 153758 3% 00) (M RE14(a)) KT
£ L H AL 22492 48 K0 (B = —48 ¢
54738 5 50) (F3E15) B % A 45 4R 47
5 3R Z A A o

(b)  AHEE Z B A AT R DL RO AR 2 B
B o

(c) PR AR A = A R AT
il BRERAT R R Rl (2R 4 1 ) -

27 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 27 HtERBDHES
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
B Enyan
Non-current portion of deferred income I 7T B A0 1 A E Y A 2,170 2,370

The deferred income of the Group as at 31 December 2022
and 2021 represented the government grants received and will
be recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful lives of the relevant assets.
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B 7% 3R & M EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥
28 DEFERRED TAX IE B 18
The components of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities and AR > A S ) 2 3 Sk A I £ 4 2 5 Y AL R
their movements during the year are as follows: mE:
Dividend
withholding
tax Others Total
Ji 21 S Bi AR It okl
Note US $000 US $°000 US $000
M aE FoLFoo Fo oo Eny
At 1 January 2021 RoZFZ—H—H—H (2,809) (525) (3,334)
Deferred tax credited/ ERREZAFTA @B Z
(charged) to profit or HE %L B JE
loss during the year 11 (575) 9 (566)
Exchange realignment [ 30 2 17 2 19
At 31 December 2021 W_2-_—##+-_H=+—H (3,367) (514) (3,881)
At 1 January 2022 RoERHE—H—H (3,367) (514) (3,881)
Deferred tax credited/ FERFPEZNTIA (N2
(charged) to profit or 3 T A I
loss during the year 11 958 (173) 785
Exchange realignment [ 54 5 9% 3 2 5
At 31 December 2022 W2 +-H=Z1+—H (2,406) (685) (3,091)
Notes: M 7t

(a)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign invested enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. Any dividends distributable by the subsidiaries of
the Group established in mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008 onwards is subject to

withholding taxes.

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$28,713,000
(2021: US$3,732,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
US$2,871,300(2021: US$372,000) have not been recognised
in respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as it is probable that profits will not

be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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— H — H 2 A% A A TR B A AT R 43
R B G 2E 038 11 BB o

W_ZZ_H+_H=1—H > GHME
2 ) A 43 IR T 7 AR R T R A AR S B I
MRS B A2, 871 3 KL (B - —4 .
373.283EJ0) © 287. 1FFEIC (R —4:
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B 75 ] 3 Mt &=
Year ended 31 December 2022 BRE R __4E+_H=+—HIL4F )%
29 SHARE CAPITAL 29 K&
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
E e E/nyan
Authorised BiE
Ordinary shares: AR -
787,389,223 shares 787,389,223
(2021: 787,389,223 shares) (ZF T —4F 1 787,389,223 1)
of US$0.1 each 4 O HO0. 136 8 78,739 78,739
Conwertible preference shares: A R BB IR -
12,610,777 shares 12,610,777
(2021: 12,610,777 shares) (. —4 1 12,610,777%)
of US$0.1 each B Ji I 0. 138 70 1,261 1,261
80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid CHEITEHR
Ordinary shares: B
240,718,310 shares 240,718,310/K
(2021: 240,718,310 shares) (ZF . —4 1 240,718,310/%)
of US$0.1 each B JB i {H0.158 78 24,072 24,072
Conwertible preference shares: EEY LT
12,610,777 shares 12,610,777/
(2021: 12,610,777 shares) (ST —4F 1 12,610,777)%)
of US$0.1 each & B H0.138 8 1,261 1,261
25,333 25,333
There were no movements in the Company’s issued ordinary WRE_FR R _FE_—FT_H=T—HI
shares and convertible preference shares during the years AEJEN > A ] BT I T B I w5 B B O i MR
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Ji 5 )
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Year ended 31 December 2022 # & —

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

The convertible preference shares are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company and are entitled to the same dividends that are
declared for the ordinary shares. Convertible preference shares do not
carry the right to vote in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the
Company’s residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of
the Company in the following priority:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The convertible

in paying to the holders of the convertible preference shares,
pari passu as between themselves by reference to the aggregate
nominal amounts of the convertible preference shares held
by them respectively, an amount equal to the aggregate of
the distribution value (as defined in the bye-laws of the
Company) of all the convertible preference shares held by
them respectively;

the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari passu
basis among the holders of any class of shares in the capital
of the Company other than the convertible preference shares
and other than any shares which are not entitled to participate
in such assets, by reference to the aggregate nominal amounts
paid up on the shares held by them respectively; and

the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to and be
distributed on a pari passu basis among the holders of any class
of shares including the convertible preference shares, other
than any shares not entitled to participate in such assets, by
reference to the aggregate nominal amounts of shares held by
them respectively.

preference shares shall be non-redeemable by the

Company or the holders thereof.

RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The capital reserve mainly represents: (i) the
amount of the equity interests acquired pursuant to
a group reorganisation in 2015, and (ii) the deemed
contribution arising from the transfer of equity interests
in prior years.

The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with PRC Companies Law or the Law of
the PRC on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and Foreign
Investment. None of the Group’s PRC reserve funds as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were distributable in
the form of cash dividends.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2.4(0).
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B BB o USRI o AR AR AR LT
UF 43 BLAC A7) 5 F 8 % 4

(i)

(iii)

Ve T S5 S8 e 2 5 N (49 % 2 BT SV A
) B BRAB A A R AT AT SR 48 S i
ARSI AE SR S 4 B R 2 A T
B B 5 P A R AR 8L (P A 2 1 24 ) A R v
%)wm %EZ%% >

% S AR AN 2 TR A6 o i A e AR
) JBe AR v A o S B A5y (VT 45 £ S M % J
T2 B3 YR % 55 7 Z AR B A B A ) 2 ¢
A N(2 BAE 4 B F A Z Ik 4 Th i 48 1)
TUSR S K&

AR T A NS i % ) 45 Air
ik 3 i {7 50050 I A7 A T 4 I8 B Sl
AR £ £ S 4 22 B A3 VIR % 6 R AT M
P ZF A N(2 RBE# B H A Z e pr
M HH) T PLAHIR ©

A R S N E A T 5 R 5 R TR o

(R

(a)

(b)

(d)

AREMZHEHERBEE TR %
T ETF A= HILEEZ S
MEBIRREEERERET RN -

BACGEM R (DR =R RAER
4% 455 ) A A W I > % (i) A DR
R T Y AR

o R £ R < 2 AR 4 v B 9
I v A1 S A A S R 48 R R4
ABEEPR R CER R A
T H =4 B2 Bl 3 A R
B & 2T a3k -

B M 5 B f 0 455 6 S A1 SR B 2
M 5 P P P O A O G R A o ol R
T3 W48 B 5 2.4(o) BT A9 & 51 B SRR
@0
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Year ended 31 December 2022 BRE R __4E+_H=+—HIL4F )%
31 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31 EXREE
(a) The Group had the following capital (a) AEERBEHRZERRENT :
commitments as at the end of the reporting
period:
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
F L Fi E/nyan
Contracted, but not provided for: AR A » H W RAE B
Property, plant and machinery LE BN 7,778 9,213
(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of (b) AEEBELEEELECEREENT:
the joint ventures is as follows:
2022 2021
US$’°000 US$’000
Bk o By n
Contracted, but not provided for CEA > H R AR B 395 436
32 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32 BEALHE
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHEEALHXRES
The Group had the following transactions with related AEE PR N AN LA TR
parties during the year: UK
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
FLFi FILF oL
Sales of goods to: HEEMT
C. P. Pokphand Co., Ltd. and (N AT S A )
its subsidiaries (“CPP Group”)# aa] ([ DI )= 2,017 2,382
HOEL and its related entities, HOELM H B A2 » R
excluding CPP Group# b 0 4 = 34,431 31,829
Other related entities with same BLCPGH HH 7] IR 3R =2 Al
shareholders as CPG o A 2 748 818
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B % ] & Mt &=
Year ended 31 December 2022 E_F - _FF_H=1—HILFEE
32 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32 BEALHEE(E)
(continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (continued) (a) HEEALHRS (HE)
Note: M it
Prices of goods sold to related parties were determined with I B N B A A A B R D SR I A R
reference to the cost of raw materials, procurement costs, JRA ~ BRI A ~ Il - A B R
other value added, reasonable profit margins, market demand KM EZEMZTREREB LB =0
for goods and prices offered by independent third-party 3t JFE T $2 Bt B0 2 i AR T B S o BB E
suppliers of similar products. The procedures for determining ) B N BB A IR B
the prices of goods sold to related parties are the same as Ii) 28 37 56 = 07 %% 7 A6 R W ARG B T
those used for determining the prices of goods supplied to — 3 o ) B LN 8 B RS AN BN A 4R
independent third party customers. Selling prices to related AT RSB E B ZE
parties shall be no more favourable than those made available
to the Group’s customers which are independent third parties.
# These related party transactions also constituted # 5 N 38 B o b iR B
continuing connected transactions as defined in FUARENERZFFEMER S -
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties (b) EHREEALTZBERBER
Details of the Group’s balances with joint venture, A OB DG 5 W’ 5 Rk T E
associate and related companies included in trade B8~ FAHRSK ~ 3% 4 T I il R KO
and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and ZAREHBEAEEE S BHEAF KA
other receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22, LN ] 2 [ W R A T 4 B 4R R R M ST
respectively. 21522 -
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) HEFEEMABOAESF) ZME
who are also directors of the Group
2022 2021
US$’000 US$’000
EETAE  RETE
Short term employee benefits w1 B R A 1,220 1,060
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Year ended 31 December 2022 BRE R __4E+_H=+—HIL4F )%
33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 BEEAREEFHREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group has exposed to the following risks: N YRS )
(a) Interest rate risk (a) EXER
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates A 45 1 i S R LB 2 ZEVR R AR
primarily to the Group’s debt obligations. The Group M 2 Af 8 T AT o A4 [ 3 4 i A 2R
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge Sl FLS P B R A B B AT o AR
its interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to market RS R A T 5 | BB A B B4
risk arising from changes in interest rates in respect Wy 2 i 5 R\ i 5 ) A AR A o
of cash and cash equivalents is considered relatively
minimal.
The following table sets out the carrying amounts 7 A B 7 i 00 R T ) S L B = SR
of the Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the A IR (R F IR

reporting period that are exposed to interest rate risk:

2022 2021
—g-_ S
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount  interest rate amount interest rate
JUSTE R ey IR R BB R
US$’000 % US$’000 %
E e Fo T
Fixed rate 5] & R F 3 DL R
denominated in: B b LA
RMB N 26,849 4.71 20,882 3.91
Floating rate TR R LT
denominated in: 1 A
RMB N 22,254 4.53 21,730 4.86
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Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, through
the impact on floating rate bank borrowings, of the

Group’s profit after tax and equity (with all other

33 HMBEBREEDHRBE(H)

(a) EXEb(H)

A ) B A R AR AT Bk A B LA
RAGE T > AR M BRI KR 2
P A (L At 5 S A )

variables held constant):

2022 2021
—® U e S
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in

profit after tax

(decrease) in

profit after tax

and equity and equity

BrBifz s Ml & BRBLAR %A &

BE 253 m HE #5384 I~

(W) ()

US$’000 US$’000

E e B n

Increase by 100 basis points 34 m 1005k B (189) (146)

Decrease by 100 basis points Pk A 1003 2 189 146
Credit risk (b) FERE

The Group places its cash deposits with a number
of major banks. This cash management policy limits
the Group’s exposure to concentration of credit risk.
Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been
measured on 12-month ECLs. The Group considers
that its cash and cash equivalents have minimal
credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties (i.e. banks and financial institutions

where cash and cash equivalents are placed).
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Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

33 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, 45% (2021: 48%)
of the total trade and bills receivables was due from the
Group’s top 5 customers. The Group performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers’ financial conditions.
Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The
allowance recognised is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which,
except for amounts due from customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
that are assessed individually, is calculated using a
provision matrix. Accordingly, the Group recognised
credit loss allowance of US$158,000 for several
customers with significant doubt on collection that is
individually impaired for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: US$168,000). As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases. The Group assessed that there is no
significant loss allowance recognised in accordance
with IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 and no
ECL rate has therefore been disclosed.

B AR A

33
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Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group considered that the entire trade receivable
balances have the same credit risk exposure. The
expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past five years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historical data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.
Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions are conducted with
reference to the exchange rates quoted by the People’s
Bank of China. Payments for imported materials and
remittance of earnings out of mainland China are

subject to the availability of foreign currencies.

Export sales of the Group are conducted primarily
in US$. For certain subsidiaries, joint venture and
associate, funds denominated in RMB may have to
be, and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported

materials and equipment.

Should RMB appreciate/depreciate against US$, it may
reduce/increase the foreign currency equivalent of such
earnings available for distribution by these subsidiaries,

joint venture and associate of the Company.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 B E - F -4+ _H=+—HIL4EE
33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the end of the reporting period to a possible change
in RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and equity
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries). The

analysis excludes differences that would result from

(c) SEREER ()

B35 L B E R 5 g R B ()

T 2 B A S fth 5 A R A B 17 L
o ARG Z BRI R A % R 2 (A
5 ] 1 B D D 2 B R R
fRZ O S5 3l ) T o8 R 3 N IR
JE 0] e A 2 S ) 2 UK AR K -
ST A 35 6 S A S B T Rk
AL Z B R LW IR AT RE A A I 2

the translation of the financial statement of foreign Ho
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
Increase/
Appreciation/ (decrease) in Increase/
(depreciation) in profit/(loss) (decrease)
RMB before tax in equity
i % i
AR WAL (k1) MK,/
T/ (W) W,/ (W) ()
US$’000 US$000
FEI T FETLF T
Year ended 31 December 2022 BEZZHETCDA
=t —HIEEE
If US$ weakens against RMB B I A5Z0 3% 478 (406)
If US$ strengthens against RMB CEIN I Fikih (3%) (478) 406
Year ended 31 December 2021 RE_F_—F
TEAEF Rk
If US$ weakens against RMB UEIM YN A 3% (520) (442)
If USS$ strengthens against RMB i £ 70 i A R ¥ FHE (3%) 520 442
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Bt 5 3R 2k MY &

Year ended 31 December 2022 &R E _-F -4 +_H=+—HILF)¥
33 HMERKRERES & RBEK (E)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)  Liquidity risk (d RBEZER
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AR SE VB W H Y 55 ) A R A
funding continuity and flexibility through the use of SRAT A 2K » At 5 G 4 20 7 1k B ol 45 1k
various types of bank borrowings. Z [ W - 1 o
The Group monitors current and expected liquidity AREEERBREREANZ R E S
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient R DL DR A i 4 B4 0ok 48 T SRAT AR
reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity BUREAMA LR E SRR -
requirements.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities TRBARRREHRZBME » A%
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the B R 5 40 e AR s B O ) B 2 L
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
At 31 December 2022 REFZZHEHZA=Z+—H
Within 1
year or on 1to5
demand years Total
i B R 5k
PR—E —ELE Hm
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FiFrx FrxFrx FErLTx
Trade payables JREAT B 5 R 3k 18,816 - 18,816
Other payables and accruals Atk W A MR R R TR 8 14,810 - 14,810
Bank borrowings SRAT AR K 36,844 12,258 49,102
Estimated interests on bank borrowings {# it R 47 £ 2% F) )& 1,699 573 2,272
72,169 12,831 85,000
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B 5 3R & MY &
Year ended 31 December 2022 B E - F -4+ _H=+—HIL4EE

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 MBREMERERSHREE (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d)

At 31 December 2021

RBESERE ()

BRI ZHA=+—H

Within 1
year or on
demand 1 to 5 years Total
HE R
R —F —RBIAE ke

US$000 US$7000 US$°000
K  FKrtrm KL Fr

Trade payables AT B 5 Wik 3k 13,279 - 13,279
Other payables and accruals At A B ok e FE R B 12,370 - 12,370
Bank borrowings SRATAE K 26,325 16,287 42,612
Estimated interests on bank borrowings it 5 SR AT B 3R B 1,144 2,225 3,369
53,118 18,512 71,630

(e) Capital management (e) EARE®E
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital ARG BEARNFEEH M5 REAR

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not

subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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Year ended 31 December 2022 #E _~F -~ 4F+ _H=1+—HIL4EE
34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34 ZAATBEBRRER
THE COMPANY
2022 2021
SRR —B T4
US$’000 US$’000
Ey e an Eyns
NON-CURRENT ASSET I B
Interests in subsidiaries T B e 2 ] A 25 23,654 23,654
CURRENT ASSETS B
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEAH IR > e R
JHC il R R 3K 42 159
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RB4AZEY 21,541 23,801
Total current assets MR E A R 21,583 23,960
CURRENT LIABILITY i B £ %
Other payables and accruals At 8 A R ok B L 4 e 2,734 3,719
NET CURRENT ASSETS R B e 18,849 20,241
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEE E DR B £
LIABILITIES 42,503 43,895
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I I B £
Other non-current liabilities oAt I3 B A A 19 38
NET ASSETS & pEE 42,484 43,857
EQUITY HE 25
Issued Capital S AT A 25,333 25,333
Reserves (note) A (FEEE) 17,151 18,524
TOTAL EQUITY HE 25 #u %A 42,484 43,857
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B 7% R 3R MY EE
Year ended 31 December 2022 R E - - "4+ _H=+—H L4

34 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34 XA TMBHERREK (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: M EtE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AAF ZEHEHENT
Exchange
Retained fluctuation
profits reserve Total
A 43 BE A1 A [ T8¢ B £k A9 ik
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Erman Emwin Emin
At 1 January 2021 N_FE_—H—H—H 17,248 27 17,275
Profit for the year G| 1,249 - 1,249
At 31 December 2021 and N2 -—F+ - HA=+—HE
1 January 2022 R _HE—H—H 18,497 27 18,524
Loss for the year NG =] (1,373) - (1,373)
At 31 December 2022 RERZZHET A=+ H 17,124 27 17,151
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